LAND USE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

MINUTES
January 8, 2014
Council Chamber
CONVENE:
PRESENT:

1:33 p.m.
Councilmember Robert Carroll, Chair
Councilmember Stacy Crivello
Councilmember Elle Cochran
Councilmember Gladys C. Baisa
Councilmember Donald G. Couch, Jr.
Councilmember Mike White
Councilmember Michael P. Victorino

EXCUSED: Councilmember Don S. Guzman, Vice-Chair
Councilmember G. Riki Hokama

STAFF:

Carla Nakata, Legislative Attorney
Scott Jensen, Legislative Analyst
Jordan Molina, Legislative Analyst
Clarita Balala, Committee Secretary
Ella Alcon, Council Aide, Molokai Council Office (via telephone
conference bridge)
Denise Fernandez, Council Aide, Lanai Council Office (via telephone
conference bridge)
Dawn Lono, Council Aide, Hana Council Office (via telephone
conference bridge)

ADMIN.:

Jo-Ann Ridao, Director, Department of Housing and Human Concerns
David Goode, Director, Department of Public Works
Michele McLean, Deputy Director, Department of Planning
Danny Dias, Planner, Department of Planning
Mollie Klingman, Captain, Department of Police
Peter Kono Davis, Lieutenant, Department of Fire and Public Safety
Robert Halvorson, Chief of Planning and Development, Department of
Parks and Recreation
Jeffrey Ueoka, Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the
Corporation Counsel
Seated in the gallery:

Danny Mateo, County Clerk
Paul Haake, Captain, Department of Fire and Public Safety
Kyle Ginoza, Director, Department of Environmental Management
David Taylor, Director, Department of Water Supply

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 8, 2014

Jase Miyabuchi, Civil Engineer, Department of Water Supply

OTHERS: Jackie Harp
Paul Laub
Carmie Spellman
Janet Six
May Fujiwara
Doug Lefler, Senior Vice President, Maui Operations, Associa Hawaii
Mark Allen
Connie Sutherland
John Wright
Mark Eberly
Jacqueline Haraguchi, Maui Contractors Association
Kelli Garcia, Branch Manager, I & L Rentals, LLC
Ivan Lay, Field Representative, Hawaii Regional Council of Carpenters
Ricky Cassiday, Stanford Carr Development LLC
Tina Fraser
Crystal Kalalau
Clare Apana, President, Ao Makole
Bruce Uu, Apprentice Coordinator, Hawaii Carpenters Union
Tom Blackburn-Rodriguez
Rick Nava
Mercer "Chubby" Vicens
Colleen Suyama, Senior Associate, Munekiyo & Hiraga, Inc.
Gwen Hiraga, Senior Vice President, Munekiyo & Hiraga, Inc.
Stanford Can , Stanford Can Development, LLC
Jay Nakamura, Stanford Can Development, LLC
Lori Lee, Broker, Stanford Can Development, LLC
Marie Imanaka, Area Manager, Prime Lending
Michael Kujubu, Architect, Alakea Design Group
Michael Miyabara, Landscape Architect, Miyabara Associates LLC
Fiona Van Ammers, Engineer, SSFM International Inc.
Michael Packard, Traffic Engineer, SSFM International Inc.
Clayton Mimura, President, Geolabs, Inc.
Ricky Cassiday, President, Data@Work
Erik Fredericksen, Archeologist, Xamanek Researches LLC
(15) additional attendees
-

PRESS: Akaku: Maui Community Television, Inc.
ITEM NO. 3(2): AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECTS (CHAPTER 201H, HAWAII
REVISED STATUTES) (KAHOMA VILLAGES SUBDIVISION)
(CC 13-36)
-2-

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 8, 2014

CHAIR CARROLL: . . . (gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting of January 8, 2014 will come to
order. I'm Councilmember Robert Carroll, Chair of the Land Use Committee. May I please
request first that anybody that has cell phones please disable the ringers or anything else that
makes noise out there. We have with us this morning voting Members, Chair of the Council,
Ms. Gladys Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Stacy Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Elle Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Donald Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha and good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: And Mike White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excused are Riki Hokama and Mr. Guzman, and Mr. Victorino will be joining us
shortly. From the executive branch we have Jo-Ann Ridao, Director of Housing and Human
Concerns, David Goode, Director of Public Works, Michele McLean, Deputy Planning Director,
Danny Dias, Planning Planner, Department of Planning, and our Fire representative. On call we
have Director of Environmental Management or representative, Robert Halvorson, Chief of
Planning and Development, Department of Parks and Recreation, Captain Mollie Klingman,
Lahaina Patrol Officer, Department of Police, Jase Miyabuchi and Dave Taylor, Department of
Water Supply. Department of Corporation Counsel, Jeff Ueoka. The developer's representative
Stanford Can and Jay Nakamura, Stanford Can Development, LLC. Colleen Suyama,
Munekiyo & Hiraga, Inc. We have Committee Staff Clarita Balala, Committee Secretary. Scott
Jensen, Legislative Analyst, and Carla Nakata, Legislative Attorney. Today we have a single
item on our agenda, LU-2(3) [sic], Affordable Housing Projects (Chapter 201H, Hawaii Revised
Statutes (Kahoma Village Subdivision). Assisting us this morning from the Hana District we
have Dawn Lono. Are you there, Ms. Lono?
MS. LONO: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana Office.
CHAIR CARROLL: From Lanai we have Denise Fernandez.
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MS. FERNANDEZ: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Denise Fernandez on Lanai.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. And on Molokai we have Ella Alcon.
MS. ALCON: Good afternoon, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. For individuals who'll be testifying in the Chamber, please sign up at
the desk located at the eighth floor lobby just outside the Chamber door. If you will be testifying
from the remote locations specified on the meeting agenda, please sign up with the Council Staff
at that location. Testimony will be limited to items found on the agenda today. Pursuant to the
Rules of the Council, each testifier will be allowed to testify for up to three minutes per item
with one minute to conclude, if requested. When testifying, please state your name and the name
of any organization you are representing. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the first testifier is Jackie Harp.
. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
MS. HARP: Aloha, and thank you for this opportunity. I'm taking advantage of this opportunity to
speak to a problem that has been in existence for quite some time regarding permitting. My
name is Jackie as Council Chairman has mentioned. I'm here to speak on behalf of the Iao
Parkside Homeowners Association. I have been a homeowner there for 12 years and served on
the board for 4 years. One of the problems that we face in permitting for new development is
that the past permits and developments that have been completed are not really complete,
because there are requirements that have never been met by the developers. Those problems
have been exemplified...well I should say it has to do with the County not having a deadline for
the requirements. I have notes so I'll stick to my three minutes here. The requirements of the
dedication of streets and other, on other development, things that are required by the developers
have not been met. Consequently, years have passed and the developers continue their
irresponsible manner of operating. I think the County should not award any more permits unless
past requirements have been met, and also a time limit be placed on those additional
requirements other than just the buildings that are completed. Eha Street runs the length of Iao
Parkside, is a very dangerous site, and is heavily used by commercial and private vehicles, most
of which ignore the 20-mile speed limit. They fly through the intersection at incredible speeds.
According to the police reports we have gathered, 200 accidents have happened in the last
three years, one death, one hit-and-run, one serious injury, and thousands and thousands of
dollars lost in private possessions and property. The residents in the 480 units are subject to
dangerous road conditions with no help. We cannot have police help or ticketing because the
road does not belong to anyone because it has never been dedicated. We have signed petitions,
filed complaints, sign waving, I have met with the Mayor and his department heads.
CHAIR CARROLL: Excuse me.
MS. HARP: Yes.
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CHAIR CARROLL: You need to have items that are pertinent to the agenda.
MS. HARP: Okay. Then I will just wrap this up. I think that permitting for any additional
developments regardless of where they are on the island should have a requirement, a timeframe
when all the requirements are met by the developer. And there cannot be problems with
undedicated streets because it has to do with the health and safety, mostly the safety of the
people of Maui. I've also talked and I want to thank the Department of Public Works publicly,
they've been very helpful. And to remind you that their mission statement is to protect the
public health and safety and property and environment by developing and operating the County's
infrastructure and administering the Building Codes. Thank you very, very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any questions for the testifier? Any clarification? Seeing none, I'm
now going to check with the satellite offices. Molokai, do you have anyone waiting to give
testimony?
MS. ALCON: There is no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai, is there anyone waiting to give public testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Hana, is there anyone waiting to give public testimony?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the next testifier is Paul Laub, he'll be followed by Carmie Spellman.
MR. LAUB: Aloha, I'm Paul Laub. I have, left a handout for you guys to look at, and this is to help
clarify a question that Councilman Couch had for Mr. Packard. And when you asked him about
the analysis on Front Street at Fleming, and if you'll see here I have, the stars along the highway,
there's six stars, those are all traffic lights. And to get to the right turn at Kenui you have to go
through three lights, and so a lot of people coming down from the north actually do take the
Front Street exit. The key thing here is not so much that south direction but it's really turning to
the north, and as I testified before, a lot of the lights, especially at Kapunakea and at Papalaua, it
takes two light cycles to get through them. The other difficulty here is that the road to Keawe, if
you call it that, it goes through Longs parking lot, and I see a lot of conflict there of going
through a private parking lot with people walking and people trying to get to that left turn
because they're having difficulties on the other ones. And also there's a police presence in the
evening, and there's a little star there right above the 0 in Front Street where every evening
there's a police officer directing traffic. The other part is Mr. Packard brought up that a solution
may be in the works with the bypass, and the bypass to the north is to my understanding is not
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even scheduled to be designed yet, so you're looking at many years down the line for that. So
that about sums it up. Thank you very kindly for this opportunity.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification for the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. And let
the record show Mr. Victorino has joined us.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Carmie Spellman, she'll be followed by Janet Six.
MS. SPELLMAN: Aloha. My name's Carmie Spellman. I live at the Front Street Apartments. Thank
you for your time, Mr. Chairman and Council members. I sent you all a letter dated the 6 th of
January. I'm just going to read it quickly. It's dear Land Use Committee, thank you for
allowing me to provide you with some additional information regarding the above project. I
anticipate you will, this will assist you in evaluating the State requirements necessary for a
developer to establish in order to use Section 201H-38, Zoning for Affordable Housing. The
mandatory criteria as dictated by the most recent Hawaii Revised Statutes, HRS as it pertains to
201H-38 zoning for affordable housing is attached above in a worksheet called FAQs. I will be
presenting this information on the 8 th of January as I am now. Clarification is in order here as I
assume that the developer and the consultants have erroneously given you incorrect information
as it pertains to this area being tsunami free or outside of the Tsunami Hazard Area. That is
because they used older maps for the Maui County that do not show tsunami areas. In fact, most
maps mistakenly used are FIRM, Flood Insurance Relief [sic] Maps released and used by FEMA,
and they do not show tsunami hazard areas. This is very important for safety reasons as we don't
want to purposely put residents' life or property in jeopardy due to careless disregard. This
morning I spoke with Ann Foust or Anna Foust, Officer for Maui County Civil Defense Agency.
She kindly provided me with an updated tsunami hazard map that was updated as of March
2013. The map is of the area of the Kahoma Village project. Please peruse the attachment. And
if any of you need it, I think that the Clerk's Office was going to provide you all with a copy.
The map is of the area for the Kahoma Village project. Please be sure that you look at that
because this project is in a tsunami hazard area. It is my contention the developer Stanford Carr
is disqualified from using this zoning 201H-38 because it's not allowable under State Statute.
Please see Item No. 5, Bullet No. 7, it says the following: They need to provide you with
evidence that the project is not located in a flood plain or a tsunami hazard area. Cleary, I am
giving you information that shows you it is in a hazard area, therefore they do not meet the
criteria. And today at the on-site many times people discussed the flood zone. I think that's
pretty standard in that area. I am not a lawyer and this will need to be assessed by the
Committee at the meeting I will present you and this is the meeting. I'm going to present you
with a couple of more things if I have time. Where I live, every day I encumber, my building's
shaking. I live, there's 145 units in the Front Street Apartments or 148, they are grouped in
sections of 8, and I live right on the Kenui Street side facing the project. So when people go over
that in commercial vehicles, my whole building, all eight units shake, it's like an earthquake
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zone. I really suspect that there are Karsts in that area. Even though they didn't prove it during
their evaluation and I know they tried, I think there are Karsts, and I know David Goode had an
engineer come out and look. He didn't know what was going on, but it still needs to be
evaluated 'cause there is something there. The zoning conflicts, I also want to say that during
the grubbing and grading process, I have a 300 angular view of the project. I noticed that when
they were doing this they took out some containers. They were like the size of, that you would
put fuel in with the big eight-wheel trucks, and they had Pioneer Mill on the side of them. But I
was on the way over here to a doctor's appointment, so what happened was I went, I came over
in medically necessary transportation and when I got back they were gone. I tried to find out
where those containers went. I talked to some people in the neighborhood, there were other
people that actually saw those as well, but we don't have any pictures. So my question is, is
where did they go?
MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. SPELLMAN: May I have a little more time?
CHAIR CARROLL: Your time is up, four minutes.
MS. SPELLMAN: Okay. Can I have one more minute?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'll give you 15 seconds to conclude.
MS. SPELLMAN: Oh my goodness. Okay. Let's see. The last thing is that driveway that they have
off of Kenui Street is the only drive in and out for the Front Street Apartments, and that does not
give emergency response teams a clear access to give us, providing us with services that we
need. There is no superstructure that is set up for this area and there's no infrastructure, and the
police and the firemen are already overworked. We don't have enough people and there's not
enough funds allocated. Thank you for your time, I appreciate it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification from the testifier? Hearing none, thank you.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Janet Six, she'll be followed by May Fujiwara.
MS. SIX: Hello, Council members. My name is Dr. Janet Six and I'm a licensed Archeologist. I
visited the site about a year ago. I excavated Moku'ula quite extensively for two and a half years
and what I encountered was a very active Karst System under all of Lahaina. And in fact, in
1954 they thought about putting War Memorial Stadium on top of Moku'ula and they didn't
because it's sinking and it's constantly moving. Carmie asked if there's a Karst, there is a Karst.
The monkeypod trees that even though they cut the stumps down are flourishing are tapped into
the groundwater, there's groundwater. It's right next to what was Alamihi Fishpond built by
Kamehameha. It's a cultural landscape. In the 1970s Hal Hammatt uncovered over
90 pre-contact burials there. In fact that it's common for people to be buried in a Karst System
-7-
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in the water if your aumakua is a mo'o as which much of the Piilani line was. What I would be
concerned about is environmental impact, cultural impact, and impact on the reef, because if you
have an active Karst System you have drainage system, a natural drainage system which will
provide non-source pollution, a superhighway right out to the reef There was archeology done,
there was some trenching done but I would like to see more. Of the soil report, the bores that I
read, 80 percent of the bores hit groundwater or excuse me, very wet to saturated soil 5 to 7 feet
down. On the 1940 maps from Pioneer Mill, it shows it as a, it's a water map, it's a watershed.
Kahoma means thin and hollow. It was in ag for thousands of years. It was gifted to David
Malo whose famous legendary 'ulu grove will be right where this development is. And for me
what Hawaiians, native Hawaiians and even the ag people saw was this is a place for ag. So I'm
concerned if you build a development there, what will happen down the road when that Karst
begins to suck the houses in? It's a sinkhole. The whole island is a Karst System, that's how we
have all the springs and the wetlands and the fish ponds. So I'm concerned for a number of
reasons, and a lot of it is cultural and environmental. So that's what I have to say.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything...Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And thank you, Dr. Six, for being here. So you're saying
you have done the studies and there are, you, there are Karst Systems there, you can verify that
they are?
MS. SIX: Oh yeah. I mean you can go to the SOEST site. In 2006 they did a Lidar map of the entire
Karst System that connects Lanai to West Maui, and it used to be filled with lakes. Ten thousand
years ago was when the polar icecaps melted, we have Maui became four islands, but they used
to be Maui Nui. And before people were here if you believe in the Polynesian diaspora, there
was a series of lakes and springs and it's mapped in very great detail by SOEST. I did a report
that we presented, I did it at the request of Clare Apana and Michael Lee last year. I presented it
to Erik Fredrickson who is the archeologist on the project, with my recommendations, as well to
Stanford Can who we met with. The fact they cut the Monkeypod trees down and they were
flourishing. Now they may be gone now, I did not go to the site today. I didn't, haven't been
there in about a year. But those are eco-indicators showing you where the water is. How...and
like we go to Plenty Kiawe in Nu'u and there's a lot of kiawe trees 'cause there's the solutional
caves, there's a fishpond there, and that's just how we get the hydrology of the island. It's not
my belief system, it's a scientific geological fact that we have this complex hydrological system,
and the first people that got here built the fishponds based on that. They tapped into that wai kai,
mule kai, that brackish water. Moku'ula was a famous pond that's very ancient, but Alamihi was
built really in historic times with the civil war Kamehameha built, it's a five-acre fishpond to
grow food for the civil war he was waging.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That answers -MS. SIX: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --my question. You mentioned a study, do you have the access...
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MS. SIX: It was done by the developer and Clare Apana got it and I read it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, I'm talking about the SOEST.
MS. SIX: SOEST -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Can you get...
MS. SIX: The School of Ocean and Earth Sciences. It's at Manoa.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Excuse me.
MS. SIX: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: May I ask a question?
MS. SIX: Yeah, son y.
-

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Can you get us a copy of that -MS. SIX: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --or a link to that?
MS. SIX: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further clarification necessary from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. SIX: Okay, thank you. Sony. Thanks.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is May Fujiwara, she'll be followed by Doug Lefler.
MS. FUJIWARA: Good afternoon, Land Use Chair Carroll and members of the Council. And welcome
back, Gladys. My name is May Fujiwara, resident of West Maui. I'm here to ask you to
approve the fast-track application submitted by developer Stanford Can for the proposed
Kahoma Village. I am a strong advocate for affordable housing, and we all know how needed
affordable housing is in West Maui. The last statistics I read claimed that over 40 percent of the
people employed in West Maui come from this side of the island. Think of how much these
workers would save both in time and money if they lived close to where their jobs are. They
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would have more time to spend with their families, especially with their children. Many young
people living and working in Lahaina still live with their parents and grandparents as they cannot
find affordable housing. The property between Kahoma Flood Control Channel and Kenui Street
where this project will be developed has been an eyesore for years. It was overrun by bushes and
it was a one-time haven for many homeless people. I'm happy that someone is finally going to
develop this land, especially with 51 percent of the homes in this project being affordable. Think
also how many jobs this project will provide, much needed work for our local carpenters,
electricians, and other trade workers. I say local because the developer has assured me that he
will hire local people. Work is desperately needed by our young people. I've talked to many
young and old who tell me that the jobs they now have are on-call jobs which means they only
work a few hours every week as needed and that they're having a hard time making ends meet.
This is a well-planned project by a very reputable developer who is also a Maui boy. So please
consider approving this permit. And thank you for allowing me to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification from the testifier? Hearing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Doug Lefler, he'll be followed by Mark Allen.
MR. LEFLER: Good afternoon, Chair Council...Chair Carroll and Committee. I'm Doug Lefler, I'm
senior vice president with Maui Operations with Associa Hawaii. I'd like to address the
economic importance of adding more housing inventory to the market. Just a few years ago
Hawaii developers slowed home building, resulting in our current increased demand for
affordable and gap housing on the island of Maui. This lack of supply is driving up housing
prices in Maui and across the State. Stanford Can Development proposes to build
203 single family and townhomes on 22 acres on West Maui. The landowner, the Weinberg
Foundation has done an incredible amount of charitable things for Hawaii's people, and their
effort to bring more homes to the area is commendable. It should also be noted the developer
Stanford Can has local ties to the Maui community, and his team's desire to build quality homes
is of great importance. Together with developers, Associa has built and managed successful
communities for 40 years. We serve our clients with local knowledge, national resources, and
comprehensive expertise. Over the years we have seen firsthand how projects such as this not
only creates local jobs but keeps local families on the island and stimulating the island's
economic growth. Thank you for your time and favorable consideration.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. LEFLER: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Next to testify is Mark Allen, he'll be followed by Connie Sutherland.
MR. ALLEN: Good afternoon. My name is Mark Allen. My wife and I live at 1150 Kaahanui Place
which is one of the three side streets running off of Puunoa Place. Ours is a very old residential
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neighborhood in Lahaina comprised of mostly single-family residences with a few multi-unit
homes with long-term renters. Many families in this neighborhood have been here for
generations. From a purely selfish perspective, I and I believe most of my neighbors would like
to see this project not proceed. We feel that this land would be much better used as parks and
recreational areas, something that all the people of Lahaina could use and enjoy. From a
practical standpoint, I understand the need for ongoing residential development, especially
housing that can be provided at affordable levels for local working people. I am sadly resigned
to the fact that this project will proceed in spite of our objections. Our two greatest concerns are
the density of the development which we would ask you to reduce substantially and the
placement of the large ingress/egress on Front Street directly across from Puunoa Place. This
ingress/egress location has already been moved once away from Ala Moana at the
request/objection of the residents in that area. We have also formally objected to the developer
personally on this placement to no avail. I have signed petitions from a majority of my
neighbors objecting to this design, and we are requesting that you require the developer to
relocate the approach either to Kenui or farther north on Front Street. Puunoa Place is a
substandard street only 15 feet wide with no sidewalks. Most traffic leaving Puunoa is left turn
north to go to Safeway or Longs Drugs. Many times traffic turning onto Puunoa has to stop on
Front Street as there is not room to turn in until the car waiting to exit can move onto Front
Street. Another issue/problem with the current proposed layout is that it will funnel the bulk of
the pedestrian traffic from the development down onto to our non-pedestrian friendly street. We
have no sidewalks. Auto traffic is often impeded by pedestrians from Front Street going to Baby
Beach. This situation will escalate greatly if the current layout is approved and built. In
summary, I have not spoken to anyone in our neighborhood who is comfortable with and in favor
of a large ingress/egress across from Puunoa Street. Most would prefer that this project not
receive approval at all. Several of us met with the developer and expressed our concerns months
ago to no avail. If this project must move forward, we residents of Puunoa respectfully implore
this body to force the developer to do everything possible to mitigate as many of the
inconveniences and hazards that their project will create as they can. Thank you for your time.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification necessary from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. ALLEN: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Next to testify is Connie Sutherland, she'll be followed by John Wright.
MS. SUTHERLAND: Good afternoon, Chair and Council members. My name is Connie Sutherland. I
reside at 64 Puunoa in the subdivision or neighborhood under discussion and in regards to the
difficulty we are having entering and exiting our cul-de-sac's neighborhood. Number one,
please do not fast track the Kahoma project, the Kahoma Village project. Two, please address
the alternate traffic egress and ingress brought to the attention of the Land Use Committee of the
Council at this morning's meeting at the site. As a resident of Puunoa Place I am greatly
concerned about our cul-de-sac neighborhood being negatively impacted as we try to exit and
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enter our homes. In closing, if the developer cannot find the people to occupy the low-income
housing, will the developer then change to market price having many items deleted from market
price project? A prime example would be Aina Nalu on Wainee Street which was originally a
low-income housing project and is now a condominium. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification necessary from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is John Wright, he'll be followed by Mark Eberly.
MR. WRIGHT: Thank you all for hearing me today. I'm here speaking on behalf of myself and my
neighbors. I have a house within the development that is accessed by Puunoa. As Mark pointed
out, it's a substandard street, 15-feet wide. They want to put the major ingress/egress right
across from where we need to go, and it would be three times the size. As I understand, it's
something about 45 feet which would be competing to get in and out of our neighborhood. Like
most of the speakers, 80-90 percent this morning, I'm against this project for cultural and
ecological concerns, but more importantly it certainly should not be put on fast track. The
Environmental Impact Study fails to address numerous issues that everybody in the community
has brought up, that being water, the access, the traffic. Gladys, you were kind enough to
address the traffic engineer and asked him. I came up with, I did research and found out that for
each home you're getting eight trips per day on a weekday. That's accepted standards within the
United States, Southern California, Hawaii. That's what is attributed to each new home that's
built. Okay, that's 1,600 car trips in excess per day that will be going in and out of where we're
going to be competing trying to get in and out with. Okay, the traffic engineer kind of muddled
through it and said well but it's not going to be that bad, the 1,600. I would argue adamantly
opposed to that, because the people going in and out are going to be like everybody else trying to
get to school and work. Everybody's going to be competing. I would argue that the majority of
those trips per day, the 1,600 are going to be in direct conflict when the traffic's the worst
already. So on that aspect, that's my biggest thing is the traffic as I do need the access. I
provided a copy to the attendant outside. As an alternative that would be placing the major
ingress and egress out on Kenui Street and simply having a right turn in, right turn out on Front
Street farther north towards the bridge. That would allow people to get in and out on Front
Street but yet it would put the majority of the users out on Kenui which they would be easier to
get out to the highway and to get out without having to utilize Front Street as their main ingress
and egress. And that's all I have to say and thank you for your attention.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification -MR. WRIGHT: And you'll all be getting a copy of this that I provided to the attendant.
CHAIR CARROLL: --necessary from the testifier? One moment. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Having seen a copy of that, you say a right turn in and a
right turn out up further north.
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MR. WRIGHT: Yeah by the bridge more so.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Would it be okay to be a both, you know, both right and left?
MR. WRIGHT: I would not be in favor of that simply because Front Street is already an issue. At the
peak traffic hours it's a mess, so by having it right turn in, right turn out it would alleviate that.
Like many of the other latest developments, you don't have any developments, major
developments that empty out to Front Street anywhere. The major ones, Front Street
Apartments, you know, where do they come in and out of Kenui is not to impact the flow of
traffic on Front Street. And I think any development should put the least amount of impact on
those around it as possible, and I think this is an alternative that would work although I'm not
opposed to . . . (inaudible). . . I'm not in favor of the project going in.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further clarification needed -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair? John?
CHAIR CARROLL: --from the testifier? Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thanks. Thanks for coming to this side, too. And this conceptual
plan that you just handed, was this run by the developers at one time or?
MR. WRIGHT: It was and they dismissed it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. They, it was not -MR. WRIGHT: It wasn't even -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --taken into consideration.
MR. WRIGHT: --addressed, I don't feel, properly. I wasn't at that meeting -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. WRIGHT: --but it was summarily dismissed which I take issue with some testimony earlier that
supposedly the developers are so easy to get along with. I have not had that experience -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
MR. WRIGHT: --and neither have my neighbors.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you for your comments.
MR. WRIGHT: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further clarification from the testifier? Seeing none, I am now going to check
from the, with the District Offices. Hana Office, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Molokai Office, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai Office, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to testify on Lanai.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Mark Eberly, he'll be followed by Jacqueline Haraguchi.
MR. EBERLY: Good afternoon, everybody, Council members. Okay, basically from what we've
talked about this morning, the developer said that Corps. of Engineers when they worked on the
stream didn't alter the stream, they just lined it up with cement. I have my family's surveying by
S.E. Bishop in 1884. Should, you guys should have this in your guys record somewhere. I mean
I can show it to you if you guys want to later on and I can show you where everything is, where
the fishpond was. It actually went into part of my family's property which is my grandmother's
side, Mookini side. Also, Puunoa Place, that road used to be a private road that was owned by
my family, my grandmother's side family. That's why that public beach access has three
parking stalls, we donated that to the County. Okay. When they were talking about the traffic
survey, the problem is I don't think they did during like on a Thursday and on the weekend,
because on the weekends us people can hardly get out of our road because people are parking
alongside the road and on Front Street to get down to the beach. Now when they open this up,
all these people are going to be coming across the road to come down to our street to go down to
the beach. Every morning I find beer bottles, beer cans all in my yard from people that was
down at the beach. Okay. And like that archeologist was saying about the watershed, there's
actually a lava tube that runs through my family's property, we have a well that brings up
freshwater that I use to water the yard than using the County water. And that's part of the family
genealogy. And it springs out into the ocean right in front where everybody goes swimming.
About 20 yards out, you can come right up to it and you can feel the freshwater come right out of
the sand. Okay. So, you know, I need you guys to really look at this really close, and like she
said, it's a sinkhole, it's a marshland, and it shows it here on this map and it shows David Malo's
name as the owner of the property at that time. And it was an agricultural lot. So if you're going
to build houses on this, I've seen it out already in Honua Kai, there's places like where I work at
-14-
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Papakea, the condos are starting to sink because that used to be marshlands, so we're having
problems out there with irrigation, lines are breaking, elevators are now starting to shift sideways
because of the building is starting to settle and sink in the, in that soft dirt. So, you know, really
think about this. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any need for clarification? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I don't know if we can get a copy of that, that
looks like a pretty old thing.
CHAIR CARROLL: I can request the Staff to see if they can do it, I cannot say if they can
. .(inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right, that would be nice. But you brought that up because you
mentioned something about the path of the stream and you never did say where that path went.
MR. EBERLY: Basically from well where Highway 30 or Honoapiilani Highway is, it hooks back into
that property and then it comes back towards where the bridge is. Okay. So she kind of does
like a loop type of thing and then she comes back towards...actually where Old Lahaina Luau is,
it kind of ended out towards that way.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further clarification necessary? Sir, if you could leave that over here, I'll see
if we can reproduce it if you would leave it or.
MR. EBERLY: ... (inaudible). . . get it back by today?
CHAIR CARROLL: You know what, you hang onto that until I can find out if we can do it.
MR. EBERLY: Okay, okay. It's by S.E. Bishop so should be with Bishop Estates, I think. They might
have it.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay, thank you.
MR. EBERLY: Okay, aloha.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Jacqueline Haraguchi, she'll be followed by Kelli Garcia.
MS. HARAGUCHI: Good afternoon, Chair Carroll and Committee members. My name is Jacqueline
Haraguchi, I am speaking on behalf of the Maui Contractors Association. The Maui Contractors
Association supports the 201H application that is being looked at right now. Many people are in
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need of work. There's a lot of commercial work that's going on right now, but it doesn't hit all
of the contractors that are in need of work. It doesn't even hit all the people that are in need of
work. We need residential work. We need residential so it'll put more different types of
contractors out there so they can get work. You know I do understand that when new
developments come in and traffic is going to be an issue, and it may or may not, I don't live
down there. You know and I do know that everyone deserves to have a dream, everyone
deserves to have a dream of owning a home, and if this developer is going to put in affordable
housing, there is a big need for affordable housing. I don't think that there's going to be an issue
where they won't be able to not sell the affordable housing part of this development. So I
humbly ask for this Committee to approve the 201 H application.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
MS. HARAGUCHI: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Next to testify is Kelli Garcia, she'll be followed by Ivan Lay.
MS. GARCIA: Aloha, Chair Carroll and Committee members. Thank you for your time. My name is
Kelli Garcia, I'm a resident of the County of Maui. I'm also the branch manager of I & L
Rentals, Construction Equipment and a member of the Contractors Association here on Maui. I
am here to testify in favor of the proposed Kahoma Village project in Lahaina. And my reasons
for supporting this project are both personal and professional. My husband was born and raised
here on Maui, we are blessed to be able to own our own home in Wailuku which was built on
family property, but honestly not everyone is as lucky as we are. We need housing for our keiki.
We need...my daughter, she deserves the same opportunity to own a house as these people who
own their own houses already. But with the way that the housing market is going right now with
the supply or the demand far outstripping the supply, she may never get that opportunity, and I'm
here to testify on her behalf. She deserves that just like every other child here on Maui deserves
that. Professionally the company that I work for we rent construction equipment to contractors
and to homeowners. We employ 50 people locally here in Hawaii. We are a locally-owned
company. Eleven of those employees are here on Maui. In order for us to continue to employ
and to supply jobs to our employees, we need construction jobs, and, you know, while I
understand the concerns of the people who are against this project, I also gotta put food on the
table of my employees as well as for my own family. So we also have a lot of my employees
who have spouses who are employed by the construction industry also. Two thousand thirteen
was a tough year for us, and I'm hoping that 2014 is beginning to look up. I am asking you to
please support the fast track of this project, and help our residents have jobs. And our children
have a chance to stay here on Maui and live here on Maui and own their own homes here on
Maui. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you.
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MS. GARCIA: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Ivan Lay, he'll be followed by Ricky Cassiday.
MR. LAY: Good afternoon, Chair Carroll and Council members. My name is Ivan Lay and I'm a field
representative for the Hawaii Regional Council of Carpenters. I'm here to support this project.
We have members out there who still aren't working, they're waiting to work, they're waiting to
get benefits for their family so they can go take their family to the doctor. They're waiting to
take their families out to go eat at restaurants again. They've been going through hard times and
we want these people to get out there and working again, building our community again,
supporting our different restaurants, supporting our, you know, going out to doctors and taking
their kids to the doctors, getting the medical treatment they need. But they have to get out there
and work. For residential housing, affordable housing, that's another big thing. For, I mean I
have to say for those of you who don't support the affordable housing, you must not have kids. I
mean you must not because our children deserve to live here on the islands. They were born
here, they were raised here, they should live here. They shouldn't have to worry about where
they're going to live or for us where can we put our kids. This is an important spot in Lahaina.
Like the lady said earlier, we have 80 percent of people who work out at Kaanapali have to go
back and forth in that area. If they find a home there, we're cutting down on the cars that travel
that way, we're saving gas for them. Which they save gas, they save money, they can do things,
too. But we want to cut down on the traffic and we're actually relocating people who are already
here. We're not adding to Maui, we're not giving more, you know, more people to live there,
we're actually relocating people who live here on the island and putting them in Lahaina close to
their work in a very beautiful area. My mom actually is from that West Side, born and raised
there, so I have roots on that side, too, and I would love to think that my children have an
opportunity to go there if they want to. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Ricky Cassiday, he'll be followed by Tina Fraser.
MR. CASSIDAY: Aloha, Council. My name is Ricky Cassiday. My stepson is a Councilman in
Honolulu so forgive me. When I was out there this morning, I figured I would get my innings
now rather than keep you out in the hot sun and the wind. My background, the reason why I'm
here is in support of this project. I am an independent market researcher. I've worked with
Stanford for about ten years, and the ten years preceding that I was at Castle and Cooke and
Gentry. And of the universe of developers that I would do market research...I was working,
basically working against him for his competitor, Stanford treated me not only decently but
honestly. And I stand here in repayment for some of that. When I left the employment of Castle
and Cooke, went out on my own, he was one of six or eight developers, I've done market studies
on all the islands, a lot on affordable housing. By the way I am Hawaiian, and my great
grandfather designed the Hawaiian flag and for his service to the king was given a fishpond
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which my great grandmother sold in order that she had the money to put me through school, and
I hope I did, I hope I do her well by that. So on the cultural side I do have some background
there. But let me stand and talk not of the past but of the future. What Hawaii has is, relative to
the rest of the world is an incredible quality of life, and it is thanks to that quality of life many of
us are...well most of us or all of us are here thanks to that quality of life. But also many of us
are able to employ ourselves or work. The engine of that, the biggest manifestation of that is
tourism but also visitors. What you have in front of you isn't a project that caters to that
overwhelming offshore demand of people wanting to live and retire here, what you have is
housing for local people who can be a part of that economy servicing those who want to live here
from afar as well as growing their family, their roots, their kids. I looked at many developments,
many affordable projects, many landowners and what the Weinberg Foundation has provided
here is pretty unique. I mean it's not impactful. My dad did have to go and deal with Harry
Weinberg and he'd come back, he said man, that guy had a mouth and boy he was a
businessman, very sharp. He would have pushed the envelope on this, he would have 500 units
easily, and he dies, he turns it over, and the mission of the Foundation, it's been wonderful,
wonderful for Hawaii and Baltimore and finds a good expression in this. This is a responsible
landowner, we should all take note of that. And then the expression of it, I mean this is low
impact, a ton of affordables in a place where they're going to walk to work. One more thing, I
know I'm beyond my time, but if you look at the future, there are, we will have more years of
high prices than low prices, and part of the reason for that is the overwhelming demand but the
other half is no supply. This is supply and it's supply to local people and that will impact local
prices of the kind that local families confront when they want to buy something. It will hold
them down or flatten them out, giving everybody who's here who wants to have their own home
a chance to buy for themselves and for their kids. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Tina Fraser, she'll be followed by Crystal Kalalau.
MS. FRASER: Good afternoon, Chairman and the Council members. My name is Tina Fraser and I'm
here to strongly support the affordable housing project for this reason, my son lives in Arizona
with his family and he's planning to move back home. But the reason why he's stopped and it's
because he cannot afford to buy a house, a home here and in his own island, in his own home.
So with this project it will make him move back home which he really wants to bring his kids
and raised here in the islands. So I strongly support this project so my son can move back home
and be able to buy a home. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Crystal Kalalau, she'll be followed by Clare Apana.
MS. KALALAU: Hello and good afternoon. I'm here to support this project, and being one of the
people that can't afford new housing and I would really like to have a place of my own for my
family. I have four kids and my husband and I both work. I work two jobs but still it's not
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enough to afford the places here. I was born and raised in Lahaina and if there's affordable
housings there that I'd be able to live in, to afford then I would be so happy to be back home.
There is just nothing here that's affordable. So for people like me, people who work and work
and just can't afford these kind of places, these affordable housings really help us out. It helps
me out and it helps me to be able to think that I can afford someplace, my own place one day. So
I'm really for this project and I really hope it goes by fast. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair? Please. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino. One moment please.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Ms. Kalalau, thank you for being here. You say you work
two jobs -MS. KALALAU: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --where do you live first of all?
MS. KALALAU: I live Upcountry.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Upcountry. And where do you work?
MS. KALALAU: I work at Kahului Carpet and Drapery.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. KALALAU: And also I work at Pukalani Shell.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay. And your husband?
MS. KALALAU: My husband, he actually works construction.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay so all over.
MS. KALALAU: Yeah but it's slow right now because there's no jobs available.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So you'd like to move back to Lahaina where you were
born and raised?
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MS. KALALAU: Yes. My family actually has a house on Kahoma Street, on the top side of Kahoma
Street, but they have so much people in one house because we all can't afford our own place. So
yeah, I would love to go back home.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Last question, if I may. Are you renting or do you own your
home up in Upcountry?
MS. KALALAU: No, I'm renting.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Renting. Okay, thank you very much for that clarification. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further clarification from the testifier? Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you for being here. And so my
question is what is the amount that you could afford to purchase a home, your, for you and your
husband, that's affordable for you.
MS. KALALAU: Like a mortgage?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, what is like the, I guess the ballpark number that would, you
know, be affordable to you?
MS. KALALAU: Well if you're talking mortgage then, mortgage, I don't know, between 1,500 and
1,800. So like maybe, what is that, 150,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: So like $300,000 home?
MS. KALALAU: That's a little high but -COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Is that high for you?
MS. KALALAU: --hopefully it comes...yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none,
thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: The next testifier is Clare Apana, she'll be followed by Bruce Uu.
MS. APANA: Good afternoon, Council members. And I'd just like to bring a little information about
the geology of this area. I have a letter which I will give to you from the State Hydrologist who
identifies this area as an area where Karsts are. And I brought the map...oh, here we go, the map
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of Maui, the water map, Stearns and Macdonald's, 1942, the, kind of the guiding map of water
for Maui. And in it where the Kahoma Stream...now this is where it was before and pretty much
where the project is are a system of separate ancient wells. So when we're talking water which
has been mentioned a lot today, this is an area. And I really thank Stanford Can and his people
for drilling some extra boring holes down, you know, core samples, and they went down to 21
feet and didn't find any coral which is what the Karst Systems which are caves that are made in
the coral system by, eroded by water and where lots of the freshwater comes through to the
ocean for the ocean resources, for those who don't know. And what is alarming to me is they
also didn't hit any of the basalt rocks, so that means that they're still in the fill probably. I am
heartened that he's not planning to put any of the pilings like they usually do for buildings deep
into the soil, but also knowing that in Kahikinui a family's burial cave was broken just by trucks
in the area doing the construction. They knew where the cave was and were, said they would
avoid it and the, it collapsed. So I feel I've done my due diligence in bringing this to the
developer. He has done his core samplings down to 21 feet, but you, Council, if you can do
Lidar and see a Karst cave system that came all the way from Lanai, ay, I think that maybe we
could ask for, to be sure, especially with the apartment on Kenui that is possibly built on Karst.
And this map shows that whole area is a section of Karst. I need to tell you really quickly about
a personal experience, and this happened to me when I was much younger. And a group of us
went out to where the Mauna Lani Bay Hotel is in Oahu, I mean not Oahu, in Big Island now,
and so we slept on the beach that night. And when we woke up in the morning, I was the only
one left on the beach and I went oh, those guys all dig out on me, you know. And it wasn't till
like ten years later did I find out that every single one of the other people who were on that beach
with me was moved, some of them were moved at least a mile and a half away, and this is the
path of the night marchers. I was the only one who was left still there in the morning. There is a
path that comes down where the Kahoma Stream is. The reason being this is their kuleana, the
warriors to come down on the nights that they are, that is for them to get to the water into their
canoe and do their kuleana. I know that this is still alive here in this stream -MS. NAKATA: Four minutes.
MS. APANA: --this old stream bed.
CHAIR CARROLL: Please conclude. Your time is up.
MS. APANA: Can I have half a minute?
CHAIR CARROLL: You've already used your time. I'll give you 15 seconds to conclude.
MS. APANA: I ask that no houses, apartments, you know, townhouses be built in the area of the old
stream bed, and that an alley for the marchers be left. You know you can say it's superstitious,
but what does it take to be careful? We don't need to have any more disturbances of, from the
spiritual world that still exists and where we want to live and shop and do our things. So I ask
the developer to please make sure that, that alleyway is left for those people because they are still
coming down that pathway.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you.
MS. APANA: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, the last person who has signed up to testify is Bruce Uu.
MR. UU: Good afternoon, Council Chair and Council members, and Happy New Year, by the way, to
all of you. I'm Bruce Uu, I'm the apprenticeship coordinator for the Hawaii Carpenters Union.
Big title but, you know, basically what I do is I educate and train our youth not for jobs but
hopefully for a career, and that's the goal of what, of my job. It's not about jobs, it's about a
career, and I think we can supply or help out the upcoming, young, eager individuals who can
take on that type of work to hopefully sustain a home in. That's always my preach to them,
right, you know, you go to the high schools, you know, if you're not going college, you talk
about, you know, potential prospects. And what we have here is an affordable housing project
that fits the bill to the point where we can put 'cm to work, where they can qualify for the loans,
and at that same time get their career building program ongoing and become better individuals.
And at the same time get one of the best dreams that I ever had is owning my own home, and I
wish that for everyone here. And if we take into everybody's account of testimony, they're
probably buying no affordable homes or no homes. I wish all affordable, I wish every person in
this house, in this place on Maui especially if you was raised here to own a home 'cause that's
your dream. So when I hear people testifying against that, you're stripping away our kids'
dreams, and that's where we're at right now. We're at that point right now when you go online
and you punch up affordable homes in Lahaina, I'll tell you what you guys got right now, 1.3
million, 1.7 million, 3.7, 1.6, 9.7. Fix the problem. That's a huge problem. The condos, here we
go, 525, 605, 400,000, and I not even sure what the maintenance fees are. How we going live
here? I worry for my kids. My kids is the apprentices. Two hundred. I welcomed every
neighbor next to me in Paia, I never bash 'em. Every land is sensitive in Hawaii, very sensitive.
Like one lady said, respect the dead, take care the living. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Ms. Nakata.
MS. NAKATA: Mr. Chair, no one else has signed up to testify.
CHAIR CARROLL: Hana, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. LONO: The Hana Office has no one waiting to testify, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Molokai, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. ALCON: There's no one here on Molokai waiting to testify.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Lanai, do you have anyone waiting to give testimony?
MS. FERNANDEZ: There is no one waiting to give testimony here on Lanai.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Is there anyone in the Chamber that wishes to give testimony, please
come forward at this time. Afterwards please on your way out, go sign up at the desk in the
lobby.
MR. BLACKBURN-RODRIGUEZ: Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee. My name is Tom
Blackburn-Rodriguez, and I've been involved in advocacy for affordable housing for a period of
time. And I'd like to testify today in support of this project, 200 homes. We need this housing.
This Council has worked very hard over the past several years to construct, to revise, to tweak
and to move forward with policies that encourage home ownership. It is a, policy has been
adopted by the Council that you all believe in the value of home ownership and you've taken
steps to help that happen. One thing is missing, the homes. The homes are missing. This is the
uncompleted task is to encourage the development of affordable housing and housing is
developed for the local market. All right. So for example in December of 2013, the median
selling price on Maui for a home was $510,000. I just had a friend who bought a condo in
Lahaina for 365,000, was raving about the great deal that she got. Okay. There is no perfect
project. There is no perfect piece of land in Hawaii. We respect the land and we listened to the
kupuna and we make adjustments as necessary. There is no perfect project, every project can be
approved, improved and this project is no different. And I encourage this debate and discussion.
The traffic is reduced if people live close to where they work, that is a fact any traffic engineer
will tell you, and we need to encourage more walkable communities where people can walk to
work and reduce the traffic. Also we do need homes for our kids, the thousand or so kids that
graduate every year from Maui County high schools. Where are they going to go? Where are
they going to live? How are they going to get married and do all the things that we all did as we
grew up? We need housing for our kids. And one final thing, maybe we need to talk about
what's going to be happening. The economy is improving, we're going to have more
developments coming through, but are we going to constantly talk about developments, are we
going to constantly count the number of traffic lights or are we going to begin to look at the life
that goes on in these communities that are being created? The baby luaus, okay, the backyard
BBQs, inviting people over to watch football. There is life that will take place in these
communities, and the communities if we encourage them will deepen and strengthen the values
of Maui. So again thank you very much for the opportunity to testify. I think this is an excellent
community. I think it's the right time, and I respectfully ask that you approve it after your due
diligence. Mahalo.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, thank you. Is there
anyone else wishes to give testimony? Please come forward.
MR. NAVA: Good afternoon, Chair, Council members. My name is Rick Nava and I'm here to testify
in support of the, this project. For selfish reason also of course I have a son and a daughter
who's been living in Las Vegas for the last two years, and my daughter keeps saying dad, I want
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to come home. And it's always the case about okay, where are you going to stay? I'll stay with
you. It's like maybe not. But, you know, affordable housing, where do we define the word
"affordable" to be affordable to me? It could be affordable to another person, it could be not.
But I believe that this project is something that we really, really need in Lahaina, especially you
talk about all the people that's living on this side working in Lahaina. And again, we know all
about the traffic and all of that. I understand also the people that are living right there on Front
Street. So I'm sure we can make some type of compromise, but the bottom line is this, we do
need this housing in Lahaina. It is, it will, you know, especially for us who has family there and
people, you know, like the lady earlier who said who lives up on Pukalani. I mean can you
imagine having all your family on Maui, you're on the same island but yet you feel like you're
like far removed from your entire family. So again, you know, on the Council they could really
look into making sure that we do have this project. And again, I do support this project, and I
hope we will all make the right decision in also supporting this project. Thank you very much.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any clarification needed from the testifier? Seeing none, please go sign up in the
lobby.
MR. NAVA: Yes, I will. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Anybody else wish to come forward to give testimony at this time? Seeing none,
and the District Offices having no one to give public testimony, if there's no objection, we will
close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: Public testimony is now closed.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.. .
CHAIR CARROLL: The Committee is in receipt of correspondence dated December 30, 2013, from
the Director of Housing and Human Concerns, transmitting an application for the development
of the proposed Kahoma Village Subdivision project, Lahaina, Maui, Hawaii,
TMK: (2) 4-5-008:001, pursuant to Section 201H-38, Hawaii Revised Statutes. The proposed
project consists of approximately 203 residential units, with 51 percent or 102 multi-family units
meeting the affordable criteria, and 101 single-family market units. The property consists of
approximately 21.6 acres owned by The Harry and Jeanette Weinberg Foundation Incorporated.
The project site is bordered by Front Street, Kahoma-Kai Stream Bridge, Kenui Street, and
Honoapiilani Highway, Lahaina, Maui. The Director of Housing and Human Concerns also
transmitted a proposed resolution to approve the project, approve the project with modifications,
or disapprove the project. The proposed resolution to approve the project with or without
modifications contains various requests, requested exemptions from requirements contained in
the Maui County Code relating to planning, zoning, construction standards for subdivisions, the
development and implementation of land, improvement of land, and the construction of dwelling
units. I'd like to thank everyone who inspected the site today, this morning, and for being here
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today. I'd like to ask for some comment now from the Director of Housing and Human
Concerns, Ms. Ridao. Ms. Ridao.
MS. RIDAO: Thank you, Chair, and good afternoon, Committee members. I also want to thank all of
the public that has come today to testify on this project as I know that it is very important to our
Council members in their deliberations and making their decision. As Mr. Carroll touched upon,
the developer for this project is being represented by Stanford Can , and they are The Harry and
Jeanette Weinberg Foundation. They are proposing a development on approximately 21.6 acres
of land on the corner of Front and Kenui Streets. The proposed housing project will consist of
203 units of which 51 percent will meet the affordable criteria of the County of Maui. I know
that the developer with its consultant being represented here by Colleen Suyama has prepared a
bullet point presentation, and she is ready to do that presentation. And I think that would go a lot
farther than me just talking about it. So if Colleen is ready we can proceed.
-

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. We are now going to take a brief two-minute recess while we lower
the screen. The applicant, Colleen Suyama, will give us a video presentation. We stand in
recess for two minutes. ... (gavel).. .
RECESS:

2:43 p.m.

RECONVENE: 2:48 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . .(gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting will come back to order. I'll
turn the time over to the applicant. Proceed.
. . .BEGIN PRESENTATION. ..
MS. SUYAMA: Good afternoon, Chairman Carroll and members of the Land Use Committee. My
name's Colleen Suyama with the firm of Munekiyo and Hiraga, and with me today I have also
Gwen Hiraga from Munekiyo and Hiraga. We also have our project team here. In terms of the
applicant it's Stanford Can Development, LLC on behalf of The Harry and Jeanette Weinberg
Foundation. And with us today is Stanford Carr, Jay Nakamura. We also have Marie Imanaka,
who's the mortgage broker, as well as Lori Lee, who's one of their principal brokers. Munekiyo
and Hiraga is the planning consultant for the project. We also have Mike Kujubu from Alakea
Design Group, who is the architect for the project. Mike Miyabara of Miyabara Associates,
LLC, who is the landscape architect. And for engineering and traffic from SSFM International
Inc. we have both Fiona Van Ammers, who's the engineer for the project and Michael Packard,
who's the traffic engineer. From geotechnical engineering we have Geolabs Clayton Mimura for
Geolabs, Inc. And our market study was done by Data@Work and we have Ricky Cassiday
from Data@Work. And our archeological work was done by Xamanek Researchers, LLC, and
we have Erik Fredericksen available to answer any questions. Okay. As part of orientation, you
folks, most of you were at the site today. This is Honoapiilani Highway located here. The
property is bordered by the highway, Kenui Street to the south, as well as the Front Street
Apartments that are located across within Nakeli Place. Then we have Front Street to the west of
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the property with Puunoa Place, Ala Moana Street, Mala Wharf Street, and these are the
principal access ways to the ocean as well as across from Kenui Street to the beach access. And
a lot of people at the site inspection was talking about Baby Beach. This is what they consider to
be Baby Beach right in front of the Jodo Mission Church. To the north of the project is the
Kahoma Flood Control Channel and the Lahaina Cannery property, and some of the people are
talking about going through the Longs Drugs parking space to get access to Keawe Street which
is across here. In terms of the project site, the project site is community planned as Project
District 4 and Open Space, and as part of that, the Project District 4 designation was to provide a
mixed use project of multi-family, senior housing, commercial space, as well as park. The
property is also zoned A-1 Apartment which allows two-story apartment projects. It is also
within the County Special Management Area, and for your information, a Special Management
Area Permit has been filed with the Maui Planning Department which has been on hold until we
complete the 201H process. Next. In terms of the required approval, the Department of Housing
and Human Concerns issued a Chapter 343, Hawaii Revised Statutes, Finding of No Significant
Impact or a FONSI determination which was published in the September 8, 2013 Environmental
Notice. Also the project will require a 201H-38, Hawaii Revised Statutes, Affordable Housing
Approval from the County Council. And the last permit before they can go into the administerial
permits would be a Special Management Area Use Permit from the Maui Planning Commission.
Next. The project, the Kahoma Village project was placed in the Maui Island Plan as Lahaina
infill. The reason that it was placed as the Lahaina infill is that the project is located within
Lahaina Town and in close proximity as recommended by the Maui Island Plan to existing
public services and infrastructure. Fifty-one percent of the project will be affordable housing
consisting of 203 single-family and multi-family units. Sixty nine would be cluster courtyard
single-family units within two to six units within a common driveway access, 32 would be
carriageway single-family units, and as explained at the site inspection, these units will have a
common service road at the rear of the property that would provide service to both their garages
as well as their mailboxes and trash collections. And there will be 102 multi-family units. The
102 multi-family units are townhouses that are proposed as the affordable units within the
project, and approximately 1.75 acres of park land. This is the project, the project site plan for
your information. This is Kahoma Stream for orientation. Honoapiilani Highway here, and
Kenui Street here. As noted, access to the project would be off of Kenui Street directly across
from Nakeli Place here as well as access from Front Street across from Puunoa Place. Just for
the Council's information, these were not the original locations of the roadway. In February of
2012, the developers held a community meeting in Lahaina at the West Maui Senior Center, and
we obtained comments from the people that attended the meeting. This was an advertised
meeting in the newspaper, notifying people that this community meeting was going to occur and
that we were soliciting comments from the community. And as a result of those comments, one
of the things that occurred was the original access on Kenui was directly across from Wainee
Street, and the public came back and said because of this intersection of people coming off of the
highway onto Kenui Street and the slope of that roadway and the close proximity of Wainee
Street to that intersection, this would create problems in terms of traffic. And they recommended
relocation of the traffic, the driveway access further to the west, and that's why it was relocated
here. The other thing that happened from the part of the community meetings is that those that
testified at the meeting indicated that Ala Moana Street on Mala Wharf which was the original
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access point is an odd kind of intersection configuration. And because you have the Jodo
Mission here as well as Mala Wharf there were problems in terms of traffic, people going to the
church and to Baby Beach as well as on Mala Wharf during the times that you have those large
trailer tractor trucks coming out with their boats and trying to make a left turn. And because of
that their recommendation was to move the highway, the roadway intersection further south, and
that's why it was relocated directly across Puunoa Place. There was also concerns that the
access may be too close to the Kahoma Bridge that's located here, and for those reasons the
applicant went back and redesigned the project to provide access at these two points. As a result
of that, one of the other things is because there were concerns raised by some of the community
members of the location of those access ways, the applicant had their traffic engineer go back
and analyze both, you know, all of these access points, Puunoa, the Wharf, Mala Wharf, Puunoa,
the Kenui Street here and Nakeli Street to make sure that whatever the impacts are minimized.
And we did go back to the Department of Public Works and indicated that because of during the
EA process these were some of the comments that came up, you know, we had done the restudy,
the Department of Public Works reviewed the supplemental traffic report, and based upon their
review of the report and our discussion, they agreed that the Kenui Street location across from
Nakeli Place as well as the access way on Front Street across from Puunoa Place were the best
location for the access driveways into the project. And I believe the final Environmental
Assessment has been submitted to the Council members, and there is a letter from the
Department of Public Works in support of those two access ways. Okay. As well as part of the
project, these are the carriage, the single-family residential units on the exterior of the project,
the carriageway houses in the middle of the project, and the multi-family units here, as well as
the park lands that are located here. And as part of this park, there is a proposed retention basin
or bioretention basin that's proposed within the park to handle the storm runoff from the project.
Okay. This is the floor plan of the proposed cluster courtyard homes. As you can see, there is a
common driveway in which all of these units would have access off of There is approximately
about eight different floor plans that are being proposed for the project. This is a rendering of
what those houses may look like along the street frontage. And a common project on Maui that
you may be familiar with is the Cottages of Kehalani, and as you can see, this is the common
driveway that goes to each of the units. And you have a combination of one and two story
buildings as part of it. Okay. The carriageway homes are the ones that have the common service
road in the back that provides access to their garages in the back of the, the rear of the property,
and then leaving the street frontages open with the building frontages as well as landscaping.
This is a rendering of what those units may look like from the street. We are not familiar of any
housing projects on Maui that had done this service street carriageway type of units, so the
developer, Stanford Can Development in Hawaii Kai did the carriageway homes called the
Peninsula, and this is a sample of what those units would look like from the street frontage. So
you have your landscaped areas, you have your porch and your house, and they could be like one
or two-story elements of the carriage way homes. And this is a view of what those homes would
look like from the street. This is also the Peninsula. You will have your roadway, your streets,
because there are no driveway accesses coming out of these carriageway homes, there is the
opportunity for parking along one side of the street within the roadways. And these parking
spaces would not conflict with either bicycle, pedestrian or people coming out of their
driveways. Okay. This is a view of what, from the Peninsula of what those service roadway
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would look like. You have a roadway, you have your garages in the back rear, mailboxes as well
as trash pickup would be occurring within this service roadway. The last type of units proposed
is the multi-family units. It's a combination of one and two-story elements consisting of six
units per complex, and you have like a one-story element. The middle units, the four middle
units will be two-story units and another one-story element at the other side, and one of the good
things about these housing is that the two-story units are a single unit, so you will not have
anyone living above you because it's part of your residence. Okay. This is a rendering of what
that multi-family complex may look like. Your one-story element here and the two-story units in
the middle. Okay. And an example of the multi-family units is the Kehalani Gardens which is
located in Kehalani project district. So you have your one-story element here and your two-story
elements, and on the other side would be your one-story element. And also the main, for the
main park, this is a rendering of what the main park may conceptually look like. You have your
park and you have your multi-family complex around the park. And as noted before, a portion of
this park would include the bioretention basin. In terms of improvements, in terms of
infrastructure, there is existing water, sewers, and utilities available to service the site. There's
an internal fire system that will be provided along the internal roadways, which means that they
will be putting in fire hydrants for the project. There will be in terms of drainage you have your
subsurface drains within the paved areas as well as the bioretention basin to handle runoff, and
there will be no increased runoff into Kahoma Flood Control Channel. In terms of the roadway,
they will be putting in the road-widening lots and improvements on Kenui Street and Front
Street. In other words, they are going to put in the curbs, gutters, and sidewalks required on both
streets on their half of the street. Because they're doing the roadway improvements, it will also
provide approximately 30 on-street parking spaces would be created, and part of these, you
know, people were talking about parking for those who want to go to the beach access. So with
the additional 30 on-street parking spaces, that should be providing access to future beach goers,
you know, within the area. Also the internal streets will meet Fire Department requirements for
access. In terms of the summary of the exemptions being proposed, they are asking for General
Plan, community plan, and zoning standards exemptions. As noted, you know, in the community
plan it is identified as a project district which would not have allowed the single-family units to
be part of it, and it did include Commercial Business which is not what the proposed, proposal of
the applicant is. They are also asking an exemption from Chapter 2.96 which is the Residential
Workforce Housing Policy, and the reason that they're asking for this is that there are
discussions within the Council in which they may be revising Chapter 2.96 in which the current
exemption for 201H projects may be deleted. And then that would make them then subject to the
provisions of Chapter 2.96. They are also asking for waivers from the permit fees and any future
traffic impact fee that may be created by the Council. 'Cause right now there is on the books a
traffic impact fee for West Maui which has never been implemented because they have never
identified what is the impact fee. And in terms of parks and playgrounds, they are requesting
exemption from the provision that you provide a parking area and comfort station for the park,
the onsite park. Noting that the park is mainly for the residence of the project although it's going
to be open to the public. So those that are around the area who want to use the park site, they
will be allowed to, you know, to use the site, but it's primarily to make sure that the project does
not impact other parks and recreational facilities within West Maui. And they also are asking
that the drainage bioretention basin be allowed in the park, because there has been I think in past
- 28 -
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discussions where the Council had not been, you know, agreeable to basins being located in park
sites. They also are asking that the existing overhead utility lines along Front Street be retained
rather than going underground, and this is based upon the West Maui Community Plan. There is
a, under one of the design guidelines, recommendation that other, you know, that along Front
Street within the commercial area such as this, where the Lahaina Cannery and the Front Street
commercial areas within the Historic District retain that existing overhead utility lines as part of
the character of Lahaina Town. They're also asking exemption from the construction bond
requirements for the Grading Permit, and for the complete list of exemptions they are in the
application. Thank you. And we have all our consultants available to address any comments
that the Council may have.
. . .END OF PRESENTA TION. . .

CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, we are going to take our afternoon break. Please be back
here at 3:15. We now stand in recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:

3:07 p.m.

RECONVENE: 3:19 p.m.
CHAIR CARROLL: . . .(gavel). . . This Land Use Committee meeting is now back in session.
Members, we have several Department heads here with us to ask/answer questions and ones on
call. On call we have...does anybody want the Director of Environmental Management or their
representative? Is anybody going to request that? Okay, one request. We shall request them to
be present. We have the Police with us. Director of Water Supply or representative, any
questions for them?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay, we will request them to come down. Parks and Recreation, any requests
from them? All right, we'll get them down here at the appropriate time. Members, I have, we
have available and I'd like to, they've been waiting so patiently all this time, I'd like to hear from
the Police first if Captain Klingman could come down. Yeah, she was too fast for me. I would
have had you come over here but you were too quick.
MS. KLINGMAN: Need to stretch my legs. Good afternoon, I'm Mollie Klingman, and I'm your
Lahaina Patrol District Commander.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: --the floor is now open. Mr. Victorino.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Klingman, for being here. Happy
New Year. Thank you very much for what you do. You've heard from many of the testifiers
today and when we were out in the site inspection, the traffic concerns. And obviously we know
there's traffic and especially peak hours, no matter where we go; however, knowing what is
going, anticipated to be built there and the ingress/egress of Front Street as well as Kenui Street,
what does the Police Department view that? And secondly with an additional 200 and some odd
homes and multi-family units which will bring in X amount of people to live there, how are you
equipped manpower-wise? Would you think that maybe more manpower would be needed? I
know it's a two-prong question but, you know, to the best of your ability.
MS. KLINGMAN: Sure. Thank you, Mr. Victorino. You know it will be a challenge for us. Parking
now and down on Front Street, Kenui it's always busy. I heard somebody testify about seeing an
officer down there every evening down by the luau actually and that's true, but that officer is
hired privately by the luau to direct traffic for the patrons of the luau because there is so much
traffic in that area. And there's a rise, it's not level on Front Street. In the area of the stream it
raises and comes down so there's limited sight visibility there. I would probably ask for
additional manpower there or to bring in maybe our traffic units to monitor. Traffic on the West
Side right now is just generally heavy anyway. I make the commute from Olinda to Lahaina
every day, and I probably as well as anybody in the community understand about the traffic. It's
slow on Highway 30 anyhow, and now the tourists are here which is a great thing and the whales
are here, it's a great thing, but, you know, when you put all of it together and the luau is sold out
at night, it's at a crawl. So to add the additional units I'm sure there's going to be additional
challenges for us. We'll do our best that we can. Traffic enforcement is one of our big
community concerns every year and we try and do assignments to target that. My officers give
citations. We take a very firm stance. We have laser devices, we get out there when we can, and
we also try and monitor the speeds. But we can't do it, we can't be there all the time, we just do
the best that we can.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And again, follow-up question if I may, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know being that Front Street and Kenui are both 20 miles an
hour which we all observed there are some vehicles that are going a lot faster than 20 miles an
hour. By having officers, an officer or officers available at different periods to monitor, to make
sure that traffic is not extensively speeding through there, I think that's going to be one of the big
things. And secondly, during the busy hours would an officer be available if we found that the
ingress/egress of the project was becoming a real, a problematic situation?
MS. KLINGMAN: We try and target the problematic areas in other places as well, so when we do see a
problem that's flared up or I get any calls into my office or there's a concern, we'll normally
spend an extra amount of time and give attention to that area, high presence and visibility. I
mean we're out there 24 hours, 365 days of the year. So we do that and also Lieutenant Uedoi

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 8, 2014

from our traffic section, they do traffic surveys, they come out and supplement our force out in
Lahaina. So we do do that when we need to.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Ms. Klingman. And, Chair, I thank the Police
Department for everything they do as it's a thankless job and we all know that, and it's getting
more and more difficult just with traffic. I took 45 minutes to come from Wailuku to the site this
morning, and it was, I had one driver in front of me doing 35. No matter where we went she did
35 miles an hour. What are you going to do? You smile, you bite your teeth, you bite your
tongue and you don't say the words out publicly what you were saying in the car, and that's all I
can say about that. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Mr. Victorino. Any further questions for the Police Department?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you. And thanks for my, sorry about my tardiness back from
my break. But hi, Captain Klingman, thank you for being here. And just a quick question, sorry
if it was asked. If you folks were consulted in regards to the...I remember the original
ingress/egress to the project going into Mala and Ala Moana and that was kind of a crazy setup.
So were you folks brought into the loop and consulted and you're fairly or pretty comfortable
with the new proposed ingress and egress of the project?
MS. KLINGMAN: So, Ms. Cochran, you know, I've been your District Commander out there the last
year, last January and I kind of heard a mention about 2012 and I was in Technical Services at
that point, so I wasn't called in or brought into the loop on that. I kind of want to defer on that.
I'm not sure what the previous commander of the district, if he was consulted or what his stance
or the Chief's stance is on that. Can't answer that. Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Not a problem, I understand. But thanks for your hard work.
MS. KLINGMAN: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Happy New Year.
MS. KLINGMAN: To you too.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you, Ms. Cochran. Any further questions for the Police Department?
Hearing none, I'm going to release them.
MS. KLINGMAN: Thank you.
-31 -
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CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you very much for coming down. We'd now like to hear from the Fire
Department. And you can take the short trip over.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: He got...he get...never mind.
CHAIR CARROLL: Loan you my wheelchair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yikes.
CHAIR CARROLL: Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MR. DAVIS: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair, Council members. I'm Lieutenant Peter Kono Davis
from the Department of Fire and Public Safety.
CHAIR CARROLL: Questions -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: --Members, the floor is open.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. And thank you for being here, Mr. Davis. We do
appreciate. And again like Police, we do appreciate everything you do. Happy New Year.
MR. DAVIS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you. Question I have for you, this project now is being
built in an area where accessibility could be a challenge, especially coming off of Kenui because
your, you know, you gotta turn right and that's all you can do unless you come down Kapunakea,
right? So -MR. DAVIS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --as far as you folks as you looked at this overall design and you
were a part of the...hopefully when this was all being, this project was being designed, they
consulted you folks. Do you feel it's adequate enough turn area to come in? And of course the
other thing is a lot of these one, you know, these, what do you call those, I get the senior
moments more and more as I get younger.
MR. DAVIS: Ingress.
-32-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, no, no. When you, a dead end.
MR. DAVIS: Turnaround.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Cul-de-sac.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Cul-de-sac. Thank you. Thank you. I knew where I wanted to
go, I just had to find the word. Cul-de-sacs, you know, I know sometimes those become real
challenging because you go in and if you gotta move around that's really tough to turn. So with
the design as it is, do you feel comfortable in, I know they're putting fire hydrants and all that so
we're not worried about that, but are you comfortable with what you can, response time, and
being able to take on, God forgive, a fire or fires in that area?
MR. DAVIS: Well I did get a plan yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, yesterday, oh, okay.
MR. DAVIS: And I did take a look at some of those issues. If we're talking about just the access issue,
Lahaina does have a ladder truck, so normally for ladder, areas with ladder trucks we require a
40.5 foot outside turning radius on all turns. I haven't really taken a look at the turns yet. I did
see some issues with some of the driveways that access some of the homes that were in excess of
150 feet that did not really have the adequate turnarounds or cul-de-sacs or you can use a
hammerhead -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. DAVIS: --or something like that, an alley dock. So there may be some issues. I haven't really
gone through it with a fine tooth comb yet, but I was assuming that we could get some kind of
preliminary, I mean other than this plan that I have, something that I can look at later on and
make the determination. We did also have some concerns about how the on-street parking was
going to be regulated. Normally we need 20 foot of clear access.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. DAVIS: The road on this plan shows about 30 feet with parking on one side. So we just had some
concerns on how the parking was going to be regulated, how we're going to keep that 20 feet
clear for the fire trucks to get through.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And I would hope, Mr. Chair, that the developer who's
here and listening to all of this will, you know, make sure that they help and these concerns be
met, because if one of the things we don't want to do is have anything built that doesn't conform
with the present Fire Codes that we have worked hard over the last few years to bring forward.
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MR. DAVIS: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know public safety is very paramount in this respect. So
thank you for your responses. And, Mr. Chair, I'll wait 'til the developer comes and then maybe
I'll address the questions to him in what Mr. Davis has told me today. Thank you, Lieutenant.
MR. DAVIS: Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Members, questions for the Fire Department? If we don't have any
more questions for the Fire Department, I would like to release them. Thank you very much for
coming down. We appreciate it.
MR. DAVIS: Thank you, everybody.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'd now like to call for our Public Works, Mr. Goode. After that, I'll be calling
down Planning.
MR. GOODE: Good afternoon, Chair and members of the Committee.
CHAIR CARROLL: Members, questions for Public Works? Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you, Chair. And I'm not sure if this goes to you, Mr. Goode.
When we exempt the impact fees for the traffic and roadway improvements, usually it's charged
and assessed for all new land development that will create a need for additional roadway
capacities. And I've heard and many of the testifiers' concerns about the potential or alleged
hazard of the increased traffic. So because it's exempted from part of this 201H, would you
know about how much do the impact fees amount to that we're exempting from and...?
MR. GOODE: Ms. Crivello, the Traffic Impact Fee Ordinance exists but it does not have a fee yet, and
what they're asking for the exemption is if the fee comes into effect, say prior to them building
units. 'Cause normally a fee like this is something we could collect at Building Permit, so right
now there is no fee, but they're asking for the exemption in case this body passes a fee in the
time that they're building.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I see. Okay, thank you for the clarification.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any more questions for Mr. Goode? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Goode, you've seen the traffic layouts and
whatnot in this project. Are you, I know you said in your letter you're okay with where the
ingress and egress is on Front Street. Have you checked out the concerns of the folks who live
on Puunoa? I drove down that street prior to the site visit and it is very narrow, it's, it is
substandard, I think it's substandard. There's no sidewalks, no curbs or anything, and to have
that traffic coming out of that project facing Puunoa, you know, that's kind of a weird setup
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there, it looks like. I was curious if you have thought of any other potential places further, little
further south or a lot further north as to where this traffic could come out. It just, having looked,
traveled there, it just doesn't look like it's a good place for that intersection.
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair, Mr. Couch, the, you know, the preference for any access to a project is
always across existing streets or other large driveways. So we prefer that we have that cross
intersection rather than a series of T intersections. In fact in our Subdivision Code we
specifically say you can't have T intersections too close to each other because it creates more
traffic conflicts, so we would prefer to have an access across an existing street. So along Front
Street, it's really only two choices I think, Puunoa and the Ala Moana/Mala Wharf intersection.
And that's where, the Ala Moana one I think was their original choice, and when they submitted
that, I guess we could say we were mildly comfortable with it. I think there was some public
opposition to that during some of their initial discussions, and so they came back to Puunoa.
And we said well, your traffic assessment doesn't address that, so we asked that they go redo
their traffic assessment to specifically look at Puunoa to see what the traffic coming in and out of
Puunoa is. I went there after the site visit today, it's been years since I've been down there but I
wanted to go look at it, so I went down and I came back out, and yeah the roadway is
substandard. It's actually a roadway a lot of people would say they like because it is
substandard, it's narrower, it forces people to drive slowly. Obviously there wasn't any beach
traffic when I went by at that particular moment, so I could see on weekends, that was probably
was the last time I was there a few years at Baby Beach, it does get congested. What I found, to
me the difficult part was coming out that the house on the south side of the corner has a fence
and plumbago hedge that made it difficult to see down Front Street which is probably an
enforcement issue for us, our Department. You just couldn't see very well so you had to poke
out farther. But the traffic assessment that they did, they did a traffic count. We asked them to
go out and specifically look at the counts, and the level of service before and after the proposed
project was I think at level service A or B or C at worst which is well within expected and
acceptable guidelines. So we were comfortable then, after that analysis was performed and we
reviewed it, we were comfortable with the recommendation to use Puunoa.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Mr. Chair? Another question.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch, proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. The other big issue is going to be the drainage. It shows
here on the conceptual drawing layout of the project, the drainage is at the, essentially the uphill
side of the project, and I know there's a specific reason for that because of the water table is
pretty low down at the downhill side. How do you, how does your Department look at this?
Because it appears to me that you have all this, all these roofs of the alley and the single-family
home, all the single-family homes down below the park that will be shedding water and they're
impervious surfaces. So unless they do...what do they call the concrete that...permeable
surfaces. Can we require those here or is that something that is still not something we do with
the Building Code here in Maui County? 'Cause I know they're, elsewhere that they're, they
allow for that, the concrete that the water goes down in through.
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MR. GOODE: Well, Mr. Chair and Mr. Couch, as it relates to drainage, the use of pervious concrete is
something they might be interested in looking at. It has been used in Maui County successfully
to date. But in general if you look at the site as it is now and that site has no drainage control in
it at all, right, has existing runoff that comes naturally off the site. They're required under our
ordinances to have the same or less runoff when they're fully built out. So you're right, the
impervious surfaces like roofs, sidewalks, alleyways, et cetera, will have more runoff coming off
the site potentially, so they have to mitigate that. They have to capture that water or put it in a, if
there's a drainage canal available that they could put it in. So that's I believe what they're
looking to do with the park which is exactly what I think what Front Street Apartments does
across the street. I think that's one of the testifiers mentioned, and I remember when that project
came through that's exactly what they did. And so they'll essentially retain the water onsite, let
it percolate out through the storm. There still will be water coming off the site and, but I saw in
their preliminary engineering report was that they were looking to hook up to some of the
existing drainage infrastructure that is along Front Street in that area and they may have to
upgrade some of it. But they don't have a detailed, final drainage plan which we would review
when they get to that stage.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And I guess as a follow-up, Mr. Chair, if they go into, for instance they
come off these roofs and it goes or in the roads and it goes into the drainage system, it's not
really filtered or cleaned or anything like that. We were just in here yesterday or the day before
with the reef guys wanting to clean the water before it gets into the ocean. It doesn't seem that
that would be done here. Is there anything...especially with our low-impact design requirements
now, is there anything in their drainage plan that you've looked at that will help clean the water
before it goes into the ocean?
MR. GOODE: They'll have to comply with our new post-construction BMP requirements that are in the
current Building Code, and that will require that the runoff coming off of it is cleaned to a certain
standard, if you will. Currently there is none there on the site, right, whatever comes off comes
off. So there, that would be the types of details we'll see in the final drainage plan, right now it's
more, it's a conceptual level discussion, but they'll have to do that in order for us to approve the
plans.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So you have some leeway there that we're not just exempting
all that stuff?
MR. GOODE: No they're not requesting that, I did not see that requested exemption in their exemption
request list.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. I have a few more, Mr. Chair, but I know others do, so when
they, when you come back around, I have a couple more.
CHAIR CARROLL: We're going to keep Mr. Goode here for a while, too, because I think we'll have
some more questions for him.
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MR. GOODE: Oh, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: I knew you'd appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Any more...Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And thank you. And thank you, Mr. Goode, for your explanation.
I know we did that with the project we did here a number of years back with A&B and their
business park that they're building right now. They were, they had to put not only retention
basin in there but they also had to put the filtration system so that no water could get into the
Kanaha Reserve. So I know what you're referring to and I know recently you guys passed that
as an ordinance. Back then it was still not an ordinance, we just put that as one of the conditions
for A&B, but I know now that you have an ordinance. And right now you're saying if there is
big rain, everything just goes down, no problem, right onto the road or wherever and it may end
up wherever the water goes and always water flows one way, down, it never flows up, it always
flows down, is that correct?
MR. GOODE: I can't argue with you there.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. Well I was . .(inaudible). . . Okay. So my other
concern really is the other ingress/egress is the one coming off on Kenui. Right now it's
supposed to be an additional ingress and egress out of the project area, and they're going to put
what I call sidewalks and all of that. Do you see there...because I think they were going to add
30 parking stalls also. Would that inhibit traffic in the sense of sight? Because when you get
cars parked just as much as when you have fences, sometime that can lead to a challenge when
people leaving or even turning in, your sight is cut off. So do you see that as a challenge?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair and Mr. Victorino, it won't be a challenge because we're going to require that
to be a certain distance away from the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Setback, in other words.
MR. GOODE: Set back from the driveways on both sides.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Both sides. Okay, okay.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, I'm glad you cleared that. And the last question I had was
they said that they're not going to have any runoff into the Kahoma Flood Control Channel, that
everything will go into retention basins or the other drainage systems that they're going to
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provide. Do you believe if it was treated or we had, again, just like we did with A&B that type
of drainage where sediment and pollutants are caught and cleaned or and then so the water
coming up is really water. Because right now Kahoma if you start from the top and come down
there's a lot of stuff that flows in there especially when you get heavy rains. You've seen that
and I've seen that, and that's one of the biggest challenges right now, same thing with lao, same
problem. There's no, it's flood control but there is no mitigation for contaminant coming down.
So do you believe if we were to require that, that could be an alternative for them as far as
drainage going into Kahoma Stream? Right now they haven't, you know again, we haven't
finalized everything, so that's why better to ask the question now before we say yes or no, so that
we can if we need to put any conditions or ask the developer now would be the time. So what
was your thoughts in that area?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Victorino, I don't think physically they can get the water into Kahoma, and if they
could, I don't think the Corps would allow it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. GOODE: But if...by doing the retention basin and following our construction or post-construction
BMPs and maybe even trying to do as much as they can in that regard, I think they're going to
get the water as clean as possible out of a development like that. And that would be, you know,
that would probably be, I think our community would be best served by, you know, really kind
of an all-out effort, if you will, in trying to conform to that ordinance as best they can.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you, Mr. Chair. I have further questions, too, but I'll
allow others, you know, and then if my question is not asked, I'll ask for another chance. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you, Mr. Goode, for being here and
also visiting West Maui. The intersection, the ingress/egress is a big topic this morning in
regards to Puunoa, and I'm not sure, was there ever discussion about a four-way stop or is that
just too much of a major thoroughfare for something like that?
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair and Ms. Cochran, I think you're right on the later part of that, it's just too
much of a major thoroughfare. The traffic engineer today talked about, you know, putting
signals where they're not really warranted. There's even warrant analysis for stops, for two-way
and four-way stops, and you put a four-way stop where it's not warranted, we're exposing
ourselves to different types of liabilities than we would by keeping it a two-way stop. So I
believe the four-way stop was analyzed but that's something I'd have to defer to the traffic
engineer to ask, but my hunch is you're right, there's too much on Front.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. And a follow-up, Chair. And I'm not sure if you saw
Mr. Wright's rendering in regards to an additional sort of a dedicated, what is that, a right-hand
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turn in and just a left-hand turn and, you know, another right-hand turn out, just one way in and
one way out kind of configuration just probably below the entrance of the bridge heading north
of the, on that side of the project. I'm not sure if you saw that and maybe your initial comment,
would something like that work? I mean I'm sure it'd be more appropriately asked of the
developer and their planners but in your, you know...
MR. GOODE: Yeah, it's something that's we'd have to analyze.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
MR. GOODE: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Okay.
MR. GOODE: I mean off the top of my head I think it would throw more traffic onto Kenui potentially,
but it's something they'd have to, you gotta run the numbers on it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. Okay. Thank you. Thank you for your comments. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Mr. Goode at this time? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Goode, one of the requested exemptions is
the bond, the construction bond. What would that bond be used for right now if they were to
have to pay for it? And are you okay with the exemption of that bond? It's on Page 3 of the list
of exemptions, it's the last exemption.
MR. GOODE: Mr. Chair and Mr. Couch, I, yeah, I looked at this and I prefer to have the bond and
that's why we have it in the Code. Maybe the developer could explain why they feel they need
that particular exemption. But essentially it would be for some unforeseen reason everything
stopped and they were in the middle of grading, this a grading bond and we had to come in and
complete the grading in some way, you know, to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the
residents. We'd like to have that ability to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, thank you for that answer. My biggest concern is construction
of drainage improvements and implementation of erosion control measures. You know without
the bond if something happened, you know, I'm sure all the intents are there but we heard about
other projects that apparently weren't completed. I really have a concern about the
implementation of drainage improvements and erosion control measures. So your thought is that
you would rather have the bond than not?
MR. GOODE: Yeah. 'Cause I think if for some reason we just or you folks decide to have that
exemption is that I guess it calls into question why we even have the bond in the first place --
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --and should we be redoing the whole ordinance. So but again, you know, I'd defer to
the developer if they have another way of looking at it. It's really it's an insurance policy -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. GOODE: --for the developer if something, the reason, something unforeseen happens.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. GOODE: I mean quite frankly we've had an incident in West Maui this last week with some
grading and rains and they were out there trying to fix it, but if for some reason that organization
had gone bankrupt or they weren't responding, we'd have to come in and do that work and I'd
like to have that bond to do it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GOODE: I mean the remedial work they're doing is probably pretty costly, and so it's just an
insurance policy, the way we look at it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
MR. GOODE: But...oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, I'm sorry.
MR. GOODE: Well...maybe it's a question for the Chair. There's a number of exemptions here that
relate to our Department, is it, are we going to talk about that at a later time or is...I just need to
know.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: . . . (Inaudible). . . the time. I think it's a good time now.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: As long as he's here.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Why don't we hear it now, Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I think it's good now. Let's go through.
MR. GOODE: Okay. Okay, so the exemptions from, there's Title 16, Building Code. The first one,
actually the Fire, Electrical, Plumbing, and Building, so I can talk about the Electrical, Plumbing,
and Building. They're looking for exemptions from the fees, and this is similar to the last 201H
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project we had before us, I think the Spencer Waikapu project where we testified that we like to
pay those fees because essentially it pays for those services that we provide. By not getting those
fees, other folks are paying for them. And the Spencer project is 100 percent affordable, this is
50 percent, so maybe there could be a compromise there. So the Department would have the
same position we had on the Spencer project as it relates to fees. I do recognize that the Council
did exempt the fees in that last project, so I understand that. The next one is new Codes that may
come up with the Fire and Building Code, so again I can speak to the Building Code. The
proposed exemption says the project shall conform to the '97 Fire Code and the 2006
International Building Code and 2006 International Residential Code in effect at the time of the
filing. And I think we understand their intent here and we did speak with the project architect to
get a feel for this. And because the project will take time to develop, there's a good chance we
could change the Building Code or perhaps the Fire Department could change the Fire Code
while they're building it; however, looking even longer term, 30, 50, 60, 80 years from now, this
would prevail and we'd still be trying to look at the 2006 Building Code potentially in the year
2086. And I can pretty much guarantee you our staff is not going to know the 2006 Building
Code 60 or 80 years from now. So we would be comfortable...I understand the intent here and I
think that's fine, but if we could limit this exemption at least on the Building Code side to the
project buildout or ten years, that would give them, should be adequate time to build out the
project. And then down the road if there's a building is lost due to fire or any other reason or if
someone wants to add additions and, whatever modifications they want to do, they would follow
the Building Code then in effect. So that's our feeling on that one.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Goode, for bringing that one
up. The question I would have is if somebody...since this is an affordable housing project, if
somebody were to purchase this with the 2006 IRC and then we put in the new Building Codes
and they wanted to add on and they would have to follow the new Building Codes only for the
addition or are they going to have to go back and retrofit? Because I've seen where that has,
something similar to that has happened before, so I want to make sure if we say, if we put that
limit on there that it's only limited to the, any new addition or remodeling.
MR. GOODE: That's how we currently implement the new changes to the Code. So if you come in for
say for a new bedroom or something on a house, only that bedroom has to conform to the new
Building Code. If it requires for whatever reason some pathway or the entrance door to be
bigger then maybe that gets changed. But we issue a lot of building permits to hotels for
instance. I mean they're constantly changing aspects of the hotel, we don't make 'em redo the
whole hotel. So it's just the work that's being requested conforms to the new Code.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Could there conceivably be any kind of thing where if they're going to
do a remodeling in a room and it says well, the electrical or the Building Code has changed here
and it carries on to the way the rest of the house was built. And if you change this portion you're
going to have to change the rest of the house. Is there things that, that might, I can see it more
happening in electrical or plumbing which they're not asking for in here, is that right? They're
just doing Building Code? That doesn't include electrical and plumbing?
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MR. GOODE: That's correct, that's what's being asked, yeah. Just Building Code and -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. GOODE: --Fire which...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So that would carry, a change in one room wouldn't carry on in
something existing in another room on the Building Code side as easily as it would with the
Plumbing or Electrical Code? Okay. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any more questions at this time for Mr. Goode?
MR. GOODE: There's, I think, Chair, there's a couple more exemptions I need to cover.
CHAIR CARROLL: Proceed. Proceed.
MR. GOODE: Okay. Thank you. As it relates to the subdivision, number one and number two, well
number one we don't have a problem with, number two is related to Parks so I'll defer on that.
Utility lines, overhead facilities. The way our Code reads is that if the lines, the overhead utility
lines I think are 15 kilovolts or higher then they don't have to put them underground, and so I
didn't see in the application what that existing voltage was. So maybe the project team would
know that. They may not even need this particular exemption. Otherwise we don't have a
problem with it. Fees, again we would ask that the fees for subdivision processing be not
exempted. And then Title 20, this is our grading and grubbing fees, again on fees we ask they
not be exempted, and bond we already discussed. And I think that covers our Department's
exemptions. That's it.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Any questions? Any clarifications necessary for Mr. Goode? Like I
say, I'm going to ask Mr. Goode to stay over here for a little while because after Planning I think
there might be other questions that we might have for him. Sorry.
MR. GOODE: Not a problem.
CHAIR CARROLL: Could Planning please come down. Please identify yourself at the microphone.
MS. McLEAN: Thank you, Chair. Good afternoon. I'm Deputy Planning Director Michele McLean
and also with me is the Staff Planner for this project Danny Dias.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Members, a lot of these over here, obviously a lot of them concern
Planning. Would you like to go down, through them just one by one? I think there's at some
time we really, actually need to address all these exemptions, if there's no objection.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 8, 2014

CHAIR CARROLL: And I thought about this and there are some changes that we're going to have. We
shall proceed that way with A-1. Any comment? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. And I, sorry if I...I know I think Ms. Suyama mentioned
some of this, but the General Plan exemption, what are they trying to do from that? I know they
wanted the Community Plan Amendment exemption which that's fine because of the
single-family home issue. But what's the issue with the General Plan? 'Cause I thought in the
General Plan we put that in as an infill project?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. McLean.
MS. McLEAN: That's correct. The Maui Island Plan designates this as the Lahaina infill project, and
the brief story that's in the text of the plan essentially covers specifically what's being proposed
today. I think the reference to General Plan, that's just the name of that particular section of the
County Code. What they're asking for is just an exemption from the community plan
designation of project district, as the applicant explained, had a commercial component and some
other differences, so that's what they would be requesting the exemption from, just the
community plan.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. All right, thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: And as we proceed if you, if we do see something over here that you feel that you
would like to modify or delete or add to, we will do it at this time. Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, thank you. The developer of the project mentioned that
they right now have Apartment zoning for this property. Is it, that's the entire 21 acres?
MS. McLEAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So what they're asking us to do is not so much change that
but to modify? Because what you're looking for is not only multi- but single-family?
MS. McLEAN: That's correct. The, what's being requested and I think Staff passed out some revised
language. In the County Code in the Apartment districts, it specifies types of structures, and
what's also allowed in the Apartment districts is any use permitted in the Residential districts
which also references single-family homes. And because they have these creative designs,
they're just trying to be very clear that the clusters and the carriage homes and those things are in
fact allowed. It's not increasing the density, in fact it's reducing the density from what the
zoning allows, but it's more defining the type of structure because the County Code right now,
the specific structures that are allowed in those districts, it would be subject to interpretation
whether what they're proposing would comply with that.

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 8, 2014

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So and I think you answered one of the bigger questions I
had is if they were to be turned down doing this project, their entitlements now, they could do a
more densely populated project on that same piece of land -MS. McLEAN: Under the...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the way it's zoned right now?
MS. McLEAN: Correct, under the Apartment zoning they could, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you. Thank you for that clarification.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further comment on this condition, A-2 [sic]? If not we shall proceed to...
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Sorry, wait. Sorry. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, I'm sorry. Yes, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And so currently General Plan and community plans are what for
this particular site?
MS. McLEAN: In the Maui Island Plan it's designated as Lahaina infill, and the story describes a
mixture of single-family and multi-family, the same number of units, the same density, so it's
consistent with the Maui Island Plan description. The West Maui Community Plan designation
is project district, and the description in the West Maui Community Plan for Project District 4 is
a mixture of Commercial and Residential. It references some senior housing and it references
some parks. So the community plan exemption is being requested because of that commercial
component and some of the other descriptions in the text.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further on A-1? If not, we will go to A-2. Any questions
on A-2, exemption from Chapter 2.96, Residential Workforce Housing Policy?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's not Planning, is it? Are we...that's for Ms. Ridao. Are you
wanting to go through that now with her or stay with Planning?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah well if anything she had comment on but otherwise we will call down...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: But Ms. Ridao is here, we can do that now.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. Ms. Ridao. You know what, we're going to have to jump around over
here.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: I know that's kind of hard sometime but if we're going to go through all of these,
it's different departments and it's going to be hard to go through and then come back and try to
catch the ones previous.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: So, Ms. Ridao.
MS. RIDAO: Yes, thank you, Chair. I believe that question was asked this morning, and the concern
for the developer is that the Chapter 2.96 is currently undergoing some revisions and they want
to be sure that they're not going to be subject to the revisions.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, no, that's fine. The current 2.96 exempts 201H-38 from any
aspects of the Residential Workforce Housing Policy, is that correct?
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: And their concern is that exemption is at this moment being considered
to be removed, is that right?
MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I'd sure like to hear from the Chair of that Committee how that's going
and what the concerns are before we go too far in this one. I don't see a problem with it but I'd
sure like to hear from Ms. Crivello if possible.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair? Not at this time, sir, Mr. Couch, because we will be
addressing that probably January 23 1d meeting with all its revisions.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Thank you, Ms. Crivello. All right, can we move on then?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Oh, Ms. Cochran.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Kind of a multifold question, I think, in regards to this
Exemption A for both departments I guess in a sense. But in regards to Harry and Jeanette
Weinberg, that entity, probably, Ms. Ridao, you're familiar with a lot of their projects they've
done in the past and the type of, you know, dwellings they've done. Is this one of the first of its
kind through this particular entity as in partly affordable and partly market? Because if I look at
the other projects in West Maui and other places, they're completely for the, you know, the
lower income and very affordable, based on income type rental and what have you.
MS. RIDAO: Yes. Thank you for that question, Member Cochran. This is the...in my experience this
the first for-sale project that I have understood, that I understand the Weinberg Foundation is
doing. And normally all of the projects that I am familiar with has been affordable rental
projects.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay, thank you. Just double checking. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions on A-1 or 2?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One quick question.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, Ms. Ridao, you just mentioned this is the first time you've had
where they're actually selling versus rental -MS. RIDAO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --for the...
MS. RIDAO: That is my experience. Now Mr. Can may have...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Different, from other islands or -MS. RIDAO: Correct, correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --something like that. Okay. So as far as, so this is fee simple for
the sales, right?
MS. RIDAO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So just we've never had this happen on Maui before.
MS. RIDAO: I have never experienced it. Yes, correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, okay. Okay, we can ask the developer at a later point,
Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. Anything...Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I'm not sure if this question should be addressed to the developer or
the Department. What's the affordable range, the cost?
MS. RIDAO: The affordable range for a 201H project is that it cannot go beyond 120 percent of
median. So usually what happens is we will negotiate with the developer, and lots of times we
base it on the schedule in 2.96 for, for sale. So part of the rental, I mean the sales will be for
income categories that are below moderate, moderate, and above moderate, and that will be
negotiated in the agreement so that every category will have units in that sales category up to 120
percent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair? Just so that the public understands what 120.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And I bet you I going put you on the spot by saying what is the
median income now? And so 120 percent, what would that be just so that the public understands
what . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. RIDAO: I just discussed this with my staff yesterday.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. RIDAO: The actual income, median income will be going down for 2014.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. RIDAO: And I believe that is 75,800.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So 120 percent of that?
MS. RIDAO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That, a follow-up on Mr. Victorino's questions. That's for a family of
four, right?
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MS. RIDAO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not a single...
MS. RIDAO: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. RIDAO: Family of four.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Family of four. Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions on Exemptions A-1 or -2? Let us move on then. B-1, an
exemption from Chapter 14.62, MCC, impact fees for traffic and roadway improvements in West
Maui, Hawaii, shall be granted to exempt the project from traffic impact fees which may be
adopted prior to the issuance of building permits for the project. The floor is open.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think Mr. Goode answered that question earlier because he had
stated that we had no impact fee rates at this point in time, and I think what they're asking for
and we can ask the developer when they come up, I'd want to ask them is that if we were to set
some fees in the next year or two or three or whatever that they wouldn't be caught, you know,
with fees that they didn't...like what has happened with water and some of our projects,
especially affordable projects for which all of a sudden their water meter fees were
astronomically increased and they were caught trying to figure that out. So I think that's what
they're asking, and I'm, if I'm wrong you can check with Mr. Goode, but I think he explained
that right now there is no rate for impact fees.
CHAIR CARROLL: You are correct, that was the explanation.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further comment on Exemption B-1? All right, let us move to C-1, an
exemption from Chapters 16.04B, MCC, Fire Code, 16.18B, Electrical Code, 16.20A, Plumbing
Code, and 16.26, Building Code, shall be granted to exempt the project from the fire, electrical,
plumbing, and building permit fees, as well as plan review and inspection fees. The floor is
open. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Are you just working with the departments on
this, or are we going to have a chance to talk to the developer because I have questions for the
developer on this. But are you just working with...
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CHAIR CARROLL: The Department has had, Ms. Ridao I believe has had a chance to go over this
with the developer.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right. But I mean if...we're going to be able to come through this
again if we wanted to make some changes based on what the developer said, right?
CHAIR CARROLL: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: That I was not going to call the developer now unless we have to. We can.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No, that's fine. No, if we can go back again that's fine.
CHAIR CARROLL: No, we can always go back on anything over here.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All right, thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: I've not made any consensus or anything, but I'm hopeful that we can go through
now and if there's something that needs research then we can do that and come back. Okay,
anything further to...
MS. RIDAO: Chair? I believe that Mr. Goode's commented on Section C, D, and we are now on
Section E for the Planning Department.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
MS. RIDAO: Yeah, okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Anything further on -COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Are we taking into...
CHAIR CARROLL: --C-1? Yes, Ms. Crivello.
Yeah, are we taking into consideration Public Works'
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
recommendation that they pay the fees? Do we do, have that discussion now?
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes, you have the floor.
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COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So C-1, Mr. Goode expressed that he would prefer that the, there be
no exemption to, that they be, they pay the permit and plan review fees. So how do we address
that or add or not add?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't think we're voting or doing consensus . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR CARROLL: Let's see.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So this is not the time we're going to address it then?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: I don't think so. But yeah, just take notes . . (inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Okay, all right. Thank you. That's all.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right, C-2, an exemption from any new Codes that pertain to Chapters 16.04A,
MCC, Fire Code, and 16.26, Building Code, adopted prior to the issuance of building permits for
the project. The project shall conform to the 1997 Uniform Fire Code, the 2006 International
Building Code and the 2006 International Residential Code in effect at time of filing of the
201H-38 application.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I think that's something I'm going to be asking the developer, but
you heard Mr. Goode and his opposition to that. And I think I'd recommend some changes in
that language, but I would like to talk with the developer at a later point when we can, you know,
make sure he's clear on this that, you know, we like current, whatever the current would be at the
time of final subdivision approval or whatever the language to make it that he won't, you know,
then they won't be continuously getting updates and changes that maybe we come in, you know,
in four years or five years, and that's happened in the past. But, you know, so at this point I
would like to have the developer come up but not now. I mean I think we can have them come
up one time and then we can go address these different issues, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes. And, you know, we do have limited time today, I don't know how long
everybody can stay, but I'd like to at least give all these the first pass, and then we can look and
come back. But I'd like to at least touch on them. Yes, Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, sorry. In that regards I do, I have a 4:30 meeting. I have to
leave at 4:30, Chair. So just for your reference.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Yeah, I know some other people that have considerations, too, but let's see
how far we can go. I'd like to at least try to make a first pass on this, because then when we
have the next meeting that puts us that much ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, very good.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay. Any further comment on C-2? Mr. White.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Just a concern that I have about making them, if the
Code changes during the process of getting to the, getting into the construction. We happen to
have a project that was caught between Codes and just to upgrade one building from the old
Code to the new Code because, you know, we're talking about keeping things affordable and
keeping costs down, but just the changes to one building I believe ran in the neighborhood of 50
to 60 thousand dollars in just design fees, not construction costs and added construction costs. I
don't have that number yet. But, you know, it's very simple for us to sit here and make these
pronouncements that you gotta follow this and you gotta follow that, but everything that is
involved in this project has a cost to it and I think it'll be very important to hear from the
developer as to what some of these costs are that we're exempting them from or requiring them
to provide. I believe the last time we went through this, that we had a spreadsheet and I don't
remember whether it was done by Ms. Ridao's Department or by the developer themselves, but
there was a cost estimate provided to us that gave an outline of what some of these costs, either
they were either unit costs or costs pertaining to each of these exemptions. And I think that
might be helpful for us just to get our heads around what kind of an additional cost we're placing
on a potential buyer down the line, because I think this is all...
CHAIR CARROLL: Well, Mr. White, the applicant does have that cost information.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Okay, great. And I don't need to hear it now . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. Like I said, I mean that's why I want to try to at least touch on it, but -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: --I have a note over here and when we do make the run if we get time today, if not
at the next meeting -COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: That's fine.
CHAIR CARROLL: --then we can ... (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I just wanted to make that point.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Anything further on C-2? If not, D-1, exemption from
Section 18.04.030, MCC, Administration, and related land use consistency and conformity
requirements of Title 18, shall be granted to exempt the project from obtaining a Change in
Zoning and/or Community Plan Amendment to enable subdivision approval. Floor is open.
That one's fairly clear cut of all the ones we've gone through. All right, D-2, an exemption from
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Section 18.16.320, MCC, Parks and Playgrounds, shall be granted to allow approximately 1.75
acres of land within the project as privately owned and maintained parks to satisfy the park
dedication and assessment requirements and to exempt the project from requirements for parking
areas and comfort station. A portion of the park shall be utilized for drainage purposes. And we
do have Parks here if they -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR CARROLL: --would like comments from Parks. Anybody want a comment?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah I would like comments from Parks but I, this is another I
want to ask the developer. 'Cause it says, you know, the thing I think want to make sure, it says
within the project as privately owned and maintained. And if I understand what privately owned
and maintained means is that our Parks Department is not going to be the one to maintain it.
CHAIR CARROLL: You are correct. But we -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So...
CHAIR CARROLL: --can call Parks Department down here and -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: --get clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Just for clarification, if you don't mind. Yeah I think I got the
picture but I just want to make sure everybody understands.
CHAIR CARROLL: Parks, could you please come forward. I have to chase somebody out for a
minute. Just one person.
MS. McLEAN: Chair, at some point would we be able to go through the Planning Department's?
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
MS. McLEAN: Would we go -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're heading in that direction.
MS. McLEAN: --through the Planning Department's exemptions at some point?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That's next.
MS. McLEAN: No, it's not ncxt, there's more Public Works after this.
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CHAIR CARROLL: Please identify yourself at the microphone, and I believe you heard
Mr. Victorino's question about the maintenance of the park.
MR. HALVORSON: My name is Robert Halvorson, I'm the Chief of Planning and Development, Parks
Department.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Can you get closer to the mic 'cause...sorry.
MR. HALVORSON: My name is Robert Halvorson, I'm the Chief of Planning and Development, Parks
Department. And in answer to your question, yes, it would be privately owned, privately
maintained. The Parks Department would have nothing to do with the maintenance.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you guys don't have a problem...Mr. Chair, if I may ask the
question. You have no problem as far as not putting any comfort station and parking in the
vicinity of the park itself?
MR. HALVORSON: We have no objection to that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objection to that. Okay, that's all . . . (inaudible). . .
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further questions for Parks? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Halvorson, for being here. What would a
project of this size, what would the Parks assessment fees be for, if this were a regular project, do
you know? Either land or the actual fees.
MR. HALVORSON: Just under 5 million or just under 2 acres.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Just, 1.75 acres is pretty close or is it a little bit closer to 2?
MR. HALVORSON: I think it's a little bit closer to two.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MR. HALVORSON: It'd be 500 square feet times the number of units.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And typically do we have parks that are utilized for drainage
purposes, or is it the other way around that a drainage basin is utilized for park purposes when
it's not raining?
MR. HALVORSON: Typically the Department does not support the use of a drainage basin for a park,
but as I understand this is an exemption from park requirements, so we don't really have any
comment on that.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further questions for Parks at this time? If not, I'm going to
release them. Thank you for coming down.
MR. HALVORSON: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. And this is . .(adjust mic). .. excuse me, this is D-3, an exemption
from Section 18.20.140.B., MCC, Utility Lines and Facilities, shall be granted to allow overhead
utility lines for electrical, telephone, and street lighting, cable television service and other related
facilities. We touched on this already.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yes. Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any further discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right, A-4 [sic]. An exemption from Chapter 18.24, MCC, Fees, shall be
granted exempt, shall be granted to exempt the project from subdivision filing, processing and
plan review fees. The floor is open. Moving on to E. An exemption from ... (clears throat).. .
excuse me, an exemption from Section 19.04.040, MCCC, that definitions of "height" shall be
granted and "height" shall be defined as the vertical distance as measured from a point on the top
of the structure to a corresponding point directly below the finished grade. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This one concerns me quite a bit as well. I
spoke with the developer and I understand their intention there. I would like to find out from the
Department if there's any kind of language...their intention is to make sure everything is, for the
two-story buildings to make sure that because of the topography of the area that it kind of is
even. Their intention is not to fill really high as a project that was done before; however, you
know, if Mr. Can gets, God forbid, run over by a truck and somebody else gets this project then
that exemption is in there, they could do another Palama Street thing and I don't want to have
that happen. Is there any language that you guys might recommend that we could put in there so
that they can have the right building heights at, on, kind of on a level area but not super high?
CHAIR CARROLL: Planning Department, Ms. McLean.
MS. McLEAN: The Council could specify a height from existing or natural grade, and then if the
developer said oh, we anticipate that we won't put in more than five feet of fill, then that might
result in a height that's maybe five feet higher than what the A-2 District would otherwise
require. So rather than exempting from any height requirement at all or saying that okay, we'll
stick with a height but from finish grade which leaves that a little bit open, you could just
establish what you want the height to be from using the existing definition of height and how it's
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measured which is existing or natural grade and just specify what that, what they anticipate that
height to be.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And the other question on this is you kind of touched upon it,
this is right now A-1 zoning, so is that the definition, is that the height that we would be using
even though they're going to do single-family or even multi-family in certain different places?
CHAIR CARROLL: Ms. McLean.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oops, she fell down. Oh, she's getting up.
MS. McLEAN: I want to look up what the height is.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: And again, Members, if can work out something and...
MS. McLEAN: Thirty. It's 30 feet.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: In A-1?
MS. McLEAN: In A-1.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Oh, okay. 'Cause it's now 35, I believe in Residential, is it not? I'm
pretty sure it's 35 somewhere.
MS. McLEAN: Oh we've amended Apartment haven't we so it would have been changed to 35.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I believe so. I think it's 35. Okay.
MS. McLEAN: It would have been 35.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So we could put a, we can say no more than five feet or eight feet of
fill or whatever if what we determine with the developer. That probably would work. Because
the topography, if you go from natural grade, you've got all kinds of different measurements you
gotta take from each different point, whereas if you say okay, no more than eight feet of fill let's
say and then you can go up from that. Is that something that the Department is comfortable
with?
MS. McLEAN: It would actually, I think it would actually be better rather than amending the definition
of height to request an or requesting an exemption from the definition of height, to request an
exemption from Chapter 19.12 which is the Apartment District and what the height regulation is
in that district. And so you're requesting an exemption from the 35 feet imposed in A-1 and say
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you want an exemption from that, height shall not exceed 40 feet or 42 feet or whatever they
indicate height, the height that they don't intend to exceed.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So, you know, Mr. Chair, it's going to be a bit of a discussion
with the developer and the Department to see where we can come to a common agreement. I
understand what they're trying to do, but understand too that we want to not allow for another
crazy infill, you know, fill up the thing 30 feet and then put the buildings up. So that's my
concern.
CHAIR CARROLL: If there's no objection, I would ask if the developer could work with the
Department, and then the next meeting perhaps we could have a recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That would be nice.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm son y. Anything further on that? All right. On E-2, the developer has
requested that, that be removed. They're not asking for that exemption.
-

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No objection.
CHAIR CARROLL: Any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: There's no objections, I just want to know what the concern is there to
the, according to the Department. What were they trying to exempt themselves from?
MS. McLEAN: My understanding is in the Apartment Districts there is a lot coverage limitation and
there's a floor-to-area ratio.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
MS. McLEAN: And if you take the lot area you deduct from that easements -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
MS. McLEAN: --and other things, so I'm, my understanding is that, that was going to get it pretty close
so they wanted to clarify that. But I don't think that they are coming close it, they were just
being cautious.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And your, the Department's okay with this one?
MS. McLEAN: With it...
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Being exempt.
-56-
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MS. McLEAN: They're deleting it, yeah, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER WHITE: They're deleting it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, okay.
MS. McLEAN: Meaning that they'll comply with the standard that's -COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Gotcha.
MS. McLEAN: --in the district now.
CHAIR CARROLL: Anything further on removing that exemption? Is there any objections to
removing that exemption?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right, that consensus. We will remove that exemption. All right. On E-3
. .(clears throat). . . excuse me, an exemption from Section 19.04.040, MCC, Permitted Uses,
shall be granted to allow the following principal uses: 1) cluster single-family units, 2) alley
single-family units, 3) multi-family townhouse units, and 4) parks, and playgrounds. The
following accessory uses and structures shall be permitted: 1) carports and private garages, 2)
parking areas, 3) energy systems, small-scale, 4) fences and walls, 5) storage sheds, 6) park and
recreation buildings and structures, including but not limited to gazebo, pavilions, courts and
pools; and playground equipment. The floor is open.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Are you...
CHAIR CARROLL: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah, this was handed out to us. Is that, are you suggesting that we
replace it with this? The whole thing is going to be replaced.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah. If we can refer to E-3 on the handout that I gave you. These are the
changes that I looked at that make this a lot cleaner and a lot more appropriate, but it's up for
discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So your...which one are you...
CHAIR CARROLL: I am proposing this.
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COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Proposing this one.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: That's the one you want to go with, off of. Okay. Is the Department
okay with this and the developer? Have they had a chance to talk about this one?
CHAIR CARROLL: I have not had a chance to talk to the applicant on this yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR CARROLL: The Department, if they have comment.
MS. McLEAN: We worked with Committee Staff on this language and think it's, it accomplishes the
same thing as the original wording, it's just more clear that, again, it focuses on the permitted
uses in the actual district rather than on the definition of permitted uses in the beginning of the
County Code.
CHAIR CARROLL: All right. You know since we do have a few more minutes and Ms. Cochran has
to leave, in this case I'd like to call the applicant down and we vote on either in substituting this
language or we can do it later.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Later would be better. You got couple more that you wanna...
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah got a couple more.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR CARROLL: Okay, thank you. Number four, an exemption from Section 19.510.010(B), MCC,
Fees, shall be granted to waive application fees. Any discussion? Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: How much are those fees and what are they for? What application?
MS. McLEAN: The only Planning fee that I can think of would be the SMA Major application fee
which would be just shy of $5,000.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. That's about the only fee that you guys have, right?
MS. McLEAN: Right. And this is amending the Zoning Code, so this would be for Planning
Department applications.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: All of Planning, and it's going to be about $5,000, is that right?
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MS. McLEAN: I believe that's the only other permit that they would need, that's the only permit they
would need from Planning.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR CARROLL: Thank you. Any further discussion on E-4 at this time? Moving on. F-1, an
exemption from Section 20.08.090, MCC, Grubbing and Grading Permit Fees shall be granted to
exempt the project from grading, grubbing, and excavation permit fees, as well as inspection
fees.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Mr. Chair, if you don't mind, we discussed both F-1 and 2.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I think everybody's okay with F-1 and 2 at this point.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: We've already discussed it all.
CHAIR CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay, thanks.
CHAIR CARROLL: I'm going to read number two over here. An exemption from Sections 20.08.130,
20.08.140 and 20.08.150, MCC, Permit Bond, shall be granted an exemption from the project
from filing a bond with the County of Maui for grading, construction of drainage improvements
of erosion control measures. Members, it's 4:35. We do have a lot of things that the Chair will
be working on with the applicant and with the departments, the questions that we have. And
Corporation Counsel also, and the departments, we will be working with the applicant. So when
we meet next time we can over and vote on what we have discussed today. We should have
enough information at that time. In theory it should move rather quickly. Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. My question for you is are you going to come
up with a list of recommended conditions?
CHAIR CARROLL: Of what?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Conditions. Or do you want us to if we have any.. .
CHAIR CARROLL: If you have any conditions, as always, I ask the floor if anybody has any
conditions they would like to present to this Committee, please have them ready at the next
meeting.

LAND USE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

January 8, 2014

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Do you have any? I didn't see any. Usually you pass one out.
CHAIR CARROLL: Not at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Not at this time. Okay, thanks.
CHAIR CARROLL: Not saying we won't. Alright. Any further questions? If not, I would like to
thank everyone. I think we made a lot of progress today. I think the next meeting we'll have
enough information for this Committee can make a decision. And with nothing further, this
Land Use Committee meeting . . . (clears throat). . . excuse me, stands adjourned. ... (gavel).. .
ACTION: DEFER PENDING FURTHER DISCUSSION.

ADJOURN: 4:37 p.m.
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